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Mission Statement

FAPIRYE D

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff,
customers, students and franchisees to appreciate
our education, products and services, which are
made by the love and kindness of our founder,

Dr. Tsai Yen Pin, who made modern ladies
beautiful, confident and wealthy.
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Selected Financial Data S EERHE FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009
HK$'000 (except per share data)  FBT(BREERN) —TTHE —TTAE —2THHE —TT\F ZSBNEF

BREE HBEE HREE HBREE | WBEE
Revenue A 357,916 363,746 450,147 592,701 538,092
Cost of sales SHERA 73,309 68,725 77,573 86,102 122,913
Gross profit EF 284,607 295,021 372,574 506,599 415,179
Operating profit Fed ey 119,905 174,630 208,315 308,477 186,753
Profit for the year EEHF 81,011 122,812 178,781 238,579 143,923
Dividends B FI 66,000 125,000 300,000 167,053 150,139
EPS - basic BREF -EK $0.0410 $0.0620 $0.0890 $0.1190 $0.0750
DPS SREF $0.0330 $0.0625 $0.1500 $0.0835 $0.0750
Return on Equity (ROE) [ NEIE: 10.1% 14.5% 19.9% 27.1% 16.8%
Return on Assets (ROA) EEER 8.9% 12.7% 17.6% 23.2% 14.2%
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Financial Highlights
HBRE

TURNOVER BY REVENUE BREAKDOWN (%)

Btk 7 T 2 & 37 (%)
0.0% 2.3%
g%%tﬂg?&gmome Servnceﬁ%\éeuglf
97.7%
Product sales
o5k

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN (%)
B3 3 4T 2 & SRR (%)

) 24.6%
1 9 A) Ta'g\%]
Others (Hong Kong,
Macau and Malaysia)
Hith (8 - RPIR
FERAEE)
73.5%
PRC
HhE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENmE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bt ¥ B8
2009 2008 Changes
—EENF —EENF 25

Turnover by HK$’000 % | HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
geographical region BBl D 2 & 5 FE T FET FiEx

PRC PR KR 395,574  73.5% 436,516  73.6%  (40,942)  -9.4%
Taiwan =) 132,299  24.6% | 146,782 24.8%  (14,483)  -9.9%
Others Hithith & 10,219 1.9% 9,403 1.6% 816 8.7%
Total 5T 538,092 100.0% 592,701 100.0%  (54,609)  -9.2%

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
BB D 2 ERE

395,574
09 B | 436,516
08 T
Taiwan | 09 1 132,299
PAY 5
=S | 08 0 146,782

PRC
REIARE

Others | 09 | 10,219
HiE | 05 1 9403

The Group’s performance in 2009, in particular the first half of the year, has 2L RMAOKSLHBREEB RN » ESER

been affected by the unfavorable business environment resulted from the SER-ZEENF2RE  LUL¥FARE &
global financial crisis. During 2009, turnover of the Group dropped 9.2% EEEH T T\ F 592,700,000 7T T &k
to HK$538.1 million as compared with HK$592.7 million recorded in 2008. 9.2% £ 538,100,000/ 7 © fiti B b 3 F 2 I F Bk
When compared with the year-on-year decline of 19.1% in the first half of the E19.1% L8 AEBZERBRTHFEZR
year, the Group’s turnover has shown a moderate rebound in the second BAE o

half.

12  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

Turnover in the PRC market saw a 9.4% decrease to HK$395.6 million in
2009. The decrease in turnover was mainly due to a decrease of HK$37.4
million in product sales. Meanwhile, service income decreased by 41.6% from
HK$7.8 million in 2008 to HK$4.5 million in 2009. In Taiwan, turnover dropped
9.9% to reach HK$132.3 million in 2009 as compared with HK$146.8 million
in 2008. The declines in product sales and service income were mainly

due to lingering impact of the global financial turmoil on the Greater China
region since the third quarter of 2008. With market uncertainties weakening
consumer sentiments, customers tended to curtail their spending and delay
their buying decisions. The sales in PRC and in Taiwan for the first half of the
year dropped by 18.9% and 21.3% and had been recovered to a modest
growth rate of 1.7% and 2.3% respectively in the second half of the year.

Sales in other regions such as Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia increased
slightly by 8.7% to HK$10.2 million. The turnover contribution from these
regions remained insignificant and accounted for less than 2% of total
turnover.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased from 85.5% in 2008 to
77.2% in 2009. This is mainly due to the change in product mix, write off
and special provision made on the inventories which charged to the cost
of sales. If the write off and special provision of HK$14.9 million made on
the inventories were excluded, the overall gross profit margin would be
approximately 80%.

FREAEMSN - EENF2EEETH4%E
395,600,000/ T c EFETH2ETERHAEM
SHEFM A 37,400,00058 7T » MARFSUABIAR =
ZTE)\F27,800,0008TRHD 41 6%EZTEN
F24,500,000/8 7T c BELHE  EXBEHR_ZZT
N\E2146,800,000/88 T FHO.O%E—EZHE
2132,300,000/8 7T ° EmEEERREVRA TR
DEERAR-ZEZN\EE=-ZEFRBIHREH
M K E i B - FEMARERTE - A
STHPHIBEESN  EFBRARLIEERE
EBREARAE RAFEL¥EF PERESEZH
EHEDBITE18.9%%21.3% » HERANFEET¥E
ERMEH  EREHBIB1.7%K2.3% °

8 BFRERADSH iR 2 5 ERMT
8.7%%10,200,000/8 7T - ZEEHEEE T
RRFFAGEEBIDAE R - (BB HEETR2% o

AEBECBEERERENRH-_ZEN\F2855%
BREZZEZNF2772%  TERERANEE
mAE BEEFEEMERSHEE  WEHEE
BRAHIER o Rt ERMFEE D MER S HRBE
14,900,000/8 7T + EEEBRERRELNHB0% ©

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN W& D

Turnover by activities
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2009
—2EhE
HK$’000
FHET

390,842
125,619
9,484

525,945

4,534
6,680
735

11,949

198

198

2008
—EENE
HK$'000
Tt

428,237
138,770
8,484

575,491

7,762
8,012
919

16,693

517

517

Changes
B
HK$'000 %
FET

(87,395) -8.7%
(13,151) -9.5%
1,000 11.8%
(49,546) -8.6%
(3,228) -41.6%
(1,332) -16.6%
(184) -20.0%
(4,744) -28.4%
(819) -61.7%
- n/af~ & A
- n/a7 i@ A
(819) -61.7%



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN W& D

2009 2008 Changes
—EThE —EEN\F 28
HK$°000 % | HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Turnover by activities  REKEI D & X5 FET FiExT FET
Products Em 525,945 97.7% @ 575,491 97.1%  (49,546) -8.6%
Services BRA% 11,949 2.3% 16,693 2.8% (4,744)  -28.4%
Entrustment Ea ] 198 0.0% 517 0.1% (319) -61.7%
Total st 538,092 100.0% 592,701 100.0%  (54,609) -9.2%
Products | 09 525,945
Em
08 575,491
Services | 09 11,949
AR | og 16,693

Entrustment | 09 | 198
Zitige | 08 517

Products

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of several types
of products, namely skin care products, beauty products, aromatherapeutic
products, color make up and health supplements, under the “Natural

Beauty” brand name. Product sales are the Group’s key revenue contributor
and are primarily made through franchise spas, self-owned spas and retail
outlets. Products sales in 2009 amounted to HK$525.9 million, or 97.7% of
total revenue, representing a decrease of HK$49.6 million when compared
with the amount of HK$575.5 million, which accounted for 97.1% of total
revenue in 2008. The decrease in product sales was mainly due to the weak
consumer sentiment especially in the first half of the year. Gross margin of
product sales for the year decreased from 89.5% in 2008 to 82.8% in 2009.
The decrease of product gross margin was due to the change of product mix
by launching new skin care product with lower price point and an increase in
sales of health supplements (which have lower margin compared with other
categories) by 90.1% from HK$47.4 million in 2008 to HK$90.1 million in
2009. The change in product mix with higher proportion of health supplement
led to the lower overall product margin. In addition, the write off and special
provision made on the inventories amounted to HK$14.9 million has been
charged to the cost of sales which contributed to the decline in margin.

Em
$$IEELM§%%JW#$%LMQ:.be
CERER BEERD VYHEREEREERS
%iﬁ%ifiéﬁ cEMEEAAEERTENS
KR EBEFEAMBERBELE 2KkEH
LREBEEH RZIEZNE Eu%i‘ﬁ‘iaﬁﬁ%
525,900,0007& 7T ({h U A 97.7%) BR_-ZZ
N\ 2 575,500,000 7T (15 48 & 2 597.1%) B
449,600,000/ 8T - ERMHEEERPZEER
Elﬁ%,ﬁ%“"”ﬁ% U EXFAE - EREE

ZEBRENB-ZEENF Z895%RE-EEN
F282.8% ° Enui%l"%‘%%l RO TIHRR R EE

mAEE  BEEHBREERZEESER  URE
BREMNZEREMERENZREERHEEEX
#90.1% » H ZFZF )\ 2 47,400,00058 T i &=
—ZZ N HE 290,100,000/ - BREEE R
EERAESHATGLEAIRE  EMiBEEEER
BEREF o I MEEEHZMIRRISHKEE
14,900,000/ T E B ER AT N > NEFE
BEFETE o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

Products (Continued)
Other markets such as Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia only accounted for
1.8% of total product sales for the year.

Em(E)
B8 BMRERACSEHMTSEGFANER
HBIHETE1.8% °

2009 2008 Changes
—EBEAF —EENF #8)

HK$’000 % | HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Service income PRIk 2= FHET FET FET
Training income EIIEE 1,261 10.6% 1,672 10.0% (411)  -24.6%
SPA service income BRI U = 9,078 76.0% 12,942 77.5% (8,864) -29.9%
Management fee income  EIEE L 32 0.3% 327 2.0% (295) -90.2%
Others Hit 1,578 13.1% 1,752 10.5% (174) -9.9%
Total et 11,949 100.0% 16,693  100.0% (4,744) -28.4%
Services ARF&

Service income includes income from self-owned spa with services provision,
training income and management fee received from franchisees, and other
service-related income.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through our self-
owned spas. It is necessary to establish self-owned stores as model spas in
new markets as the Group considers it as a more profitable and cost-efficient
way on the whole to allocate resources to stimulate overall product sales.

Service income is generated solely from our self-owned spas as the

Group does not share any service income generated in franchised spas

with franchisees under the current franchise arrangement. Service income
generated from franchised spas is vital for them to cover their operating
expenses such as rental, salary and utilities. During 2009, income from
services decreased by 28.4% to HK$11.9 million when compared with
HK$16.7 million in 2008. The decrease was mainly due to the shrinkage in
SPA service income by approximately HK$3.9 million which was resulted
from the more conservative consumer spending behavior, an extension of the
financial crisis from 2008 to 2009.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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FEEBEBHEBELENEROREHNEEE -
EBRKERY - AEELEARFHHERIBE
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ARRMERERME  EREMSKTRERE
EBF - BEAERAMES -

HARRBRTINBEEZH  AEETEESEM
BEKEKEROABEMERERE - Bt Bk
KN ERE BELERKERL o MBEKES
DFIBRBEKREEHNBEEEAEE » HEHELUK
e HFeRKkEBELENMI -RZEZN
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

Entrustment

Entrusted spas, which were previously operated by the Group, are owned

by the Group and operated by reputable operators. In order to have a more
efficient allocation of financial and human resources, the Group launched
entrustment arrangements in the PRC and our self-owned spas were entrusted
to reputable operators in local areas. The operators are responsible for selling
the Group’s products in their stores and they bear all the profits and losses of
the operations, while the Group receives a fixed annual entrustment fee from
the operators until the Group’s initial investment is repaid in five years’ time.
By then, the entrusted spas will become regular franchised spas.

In 2009, entrustment income recorded a further decrease of 61.7% to
HK$0.2 million when compared with HK$0.5 million in 2008. The drop
in entrustment income was attributable to the expiration of remaining
entrustment arrangement in 2009. There was no entrusted spa as at 31
December 2009.

Other income

Other income mainly comprised rental income of other properties, interest
income, financial refunds, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipments
and foreign exchange gain, which amounted to HK$5.8 million, HK$2.4
million, HK$7.5 million, HK$0.6 million, HK$0.5 million and the remaining
balance respectively. Other income decreased by 64.3%, or HK$37.5 million
from HK$58.2 million in 2008 to HK$20.8 million in 2009. The decrease was
mainly due to the realized exchange gain from the dividend received from

a PRC subsidiary which amounted to HK$25.4 million during 2008 when
compared with only HK$0.5 million during 2009. Moreover, there was also

a disposal gain of HK$17.7 million in 2008 in relation to a building in Taiwan.
However, the decline of other income was offset by the increase of HK$5.3
million in financial refunds in 2009.

e
DERAEEEE 2 ZAREREFLRALRE
BEEAYHEERE CKEELE - REAYSD
BUBERANER  AEBEPEAREHEHERL
RERP ZAEHNERSKEERELEEBE
REZKERL - BEERBRBBRNIERH
EXEEHER MAKEQEEESFWINE
BETKLER  HERSKEERNEFNREE
FEBNSREBRIL - BRETLE 2KEP
GRS — AR INEBAR B o

RZBENF  EALLERBZH-ZTZENEZ
500,000 T — & F 4 61.7% 2 200,00058 JT ©
ZRAREWNE RO THRRG 2 EELE R
RIBEZNEERIB -R=ZZTZhhE+A
=+—0  WELZFELL ZKEPN o

Hibl

Hit = =B EEE MY E 2B S UWE 5,800,000
B~ A B Uk 32,400,000 T - BIBER
7,500,000 7T - HETEHE - BREERRXREZ
I %5 600,00078 T & [E 5 Uk 25 500,00058 7T » &
FHARBEHEHMER - HHWEH-_ZEENF 2
58,200,0003% JTiE 4 37,500,000 B T E =2 &
NLE 220,800,00078 7T * IR 564.3% ° B E
ERR-EZENFRE-—FRPEREHRBLTZ
B EZEE #RE X IWEE25,400,0008 7T » M
—EZRAFEEA500,00058 T o M =
ENEFRHESE —ERTMAREENRE
17,700,000/ 7t ° A » HftliE 2 BiIER —=F
TN F 2 B IR F L 505,300,000758 T i A Fr ik
85 o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

Distribution and administrative expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of turnover
increased slightly at 22.4% for the year ended 31 December 2009 compared
with 21.5% for the last corresponding period. The increase as percentage

of sales is due to higher rental of counters and self-own spa in China. Total
expenses in dollar terms decreased by HK$7.3 million from HK$127.6 million
in 2008 to HK$120.3 million for the same period of 2009. During the year
under review, the Group continued to reduce media exposure and promote
products offering through word of mouths of our existing customers. Instead
of media advertising, free samples and gifts were given away to our existing

customers and extended the reach through their friends and family members.

In percentage terms, advertising and promotion expenses represented 7.7 %
of total turnover in 2009, when compared with 9.6% for the same period

in 2008. Other key expenses mainly included salary, commission, travel

and transportation expenses as well as rental expenses, which amounted

to HK$23.2 million, HK$4.9 million, HK$10.9 million and HK$18.3 million
respectively.

Total administrative expenses in dollar terms decreased by HK$3.6 million
to HK$109.1 million for the year under review. Administrative expenses as
a percentage of turnover slightly increased from 19.0% in 2008 to 20.3% in
2009 since the Taiwan new headquarter’s rental of HK$6.3 million charged
in 2009, while offset by $14 million bad debts written off in 2008. The
other administrative cost mainly covered staff costs, legal and professional
fee, traveling expenses, depreciation and rental charges which amounted
to HK$44.5 million, HK$11.8 million, HK$5.6 million, HK$8.1 million and
HK$11.1 million respectively.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

Other expenses

Other expenses increased from HK$16.0 million in 2008 to HK$19.8 million in
2009, representing an increase of HK$3.8 million or 23.6%. Other expenses
mainly included bank charges of HK$3.0 million, impairment loss on available-
for-sale investments of HK$2.0 million and impairment loss on investment in a
subsidiary amounted to HK$11.3 million.

Profit before taxation

A decrease in gross profit and other income, netting a decrease of
administrative expenses, distribution and selling expenses and an increase of
other expenses, contributed to the decline of 39.5% in profit before tax from
HK$308.5million in 2008 to HK$186.8 million in 2009.

Taxation

Taxation expenses decreased 38.7% from HK$69.9 million in 2008 to
HK$42.8 million in 2009. The effective tax rates of the Group in 2008 and
2009 were 22.7% and 22.9% respectively. The decrease in taxation expenses
was due to the drop in pre-tax profit in both markets during the year under
review, as well as the reduction in dividend withholding tax paid or accrued

in Taiwan and PRC subsidiaries from HK$32.3 million in 2008 to HK$12.6
million in 2009.

Profit for the year
As a result, profit for the year declined by 39.7% from HK$238.6 million in
2008 to HK$143.9 million in 2009.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2009 was approximately
HK$154.1 million (2008: HK$269.3 million). The decrease was primarily due
to a decrease in profit and changes in working capital. As at 31 December
2009, the Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$559.3
million (as at 31 December 2008: HK$546.2 million) with no external bank
borrowing.

Hh 3z
HihZXHBE—Z2F N\ F,216,000,000/8 T EZ
FENHF 219,800,000/ 7T » & 513,800,000 7T
523.6% o HAth tHF B EFERTUES,000,000
B~ At EREREE 182,000,000 7T K Y
BARRERERFIE11,300,000/8 7T

BRBLAEF

AREFREMKRERD  NBRTHES - 28
REEERARMS REMBAZIEMNE  READEF
=% )\ £ ,2308,500,000/& TiH D 39.5%E =
ZZ H,4F 2186,800,00058 7T °

BiE

BEZHB ZFE)\F 269,900,000 TiH
387N EZZFENF 242,800,000/ T - KEE
RZZBENGFR-_ZBZNF2ERBEDINA
22.7%%22.9% ° FIBEXZ HED TIHREBEFER
BHSHBRAEFEETHR  MEREERTE
REMBARFMAMNBRANEIRBE-_EENF2
32,300,0003% TR ZE =B E H & 2 12,600,00058
5T o

REERER

EREtAEE AEFEZINH-_ZEZENFZ
238,600,000 B TH P 07N E_ZEZENE 2
143,900,00038 7T °

REBEESRIBER
RIEZNFREEBRBREK5154,100,000
BIT(ZZEE)\F : 269,300,000/87T) @ BME
EREABABIREEESEB M - N=_F
ZEREF+ZA=+—8 AEEBRTEEER
£#9559,300,0008 T (= EZENF+-_A=+—
B : 546,200,000/ 7T) + BIEINRIBITHERR ©

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFER

19



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009,

the Group’s gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by
shareholders’ equity) as the Group was in net cash balance as at both year
end dates. Current ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by
current liabilities) as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009 were 4.7
times and 6.2 times respectively. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had
no material contingent liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial
statements and notes thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand,
the Group’s liquidity position remains strong and the Group has sufficient
financial resources to finance its commitments and to meet working capital
requirements.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a pledge of bank deposit of
HK$430,000 (as at 31 December 2008: HK$428,000) in order to ensure that
one of its wholly owned subsidiaries complied with the terms stipulated in a
Tenancy Agreement which had been entered into with the landlord so as to
obtain a right of use of a self-owned store in Macau.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates

The Group derives most of the revenue denominated in Renminbi and New
Taiwan Dollars from the PRC and Taiwan as our operations are mainly
located in these two areas. As at 31 December 2009, approximately 46.7%
(as at 31 December 2008: 56.7%) of the Group’s bank balances and cash
was denominated in Renminbi, while approximately 6.8% (as at 31 December
2008: 10.1%) in New Taiwan Dollars. The remaining 46.5% (as at 31
December 2008: 33.2%) was denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollars,
Macau Pataca and Malaysia Ringgits. The Group continued to adopt a
conservative approach in terms of foreign exchange exposure management.
Review of the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk will be conducted
periodically and derivative financial instruments may be used to hedge against
such risks when necessary.
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EEEN W& D

BUSINESS REVIEW e A1)
2009 2008 Changes

—ETAF —EENF =)
Turnover by HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
geographic region RGBS 2 E X FET FET FET
PRC R K BE
Products =M 390,842 428,237 (87,395) -8.7%
Services BRFE 4,534 7,762 (8,228) -41.6%
Entrustment TrKeE 198 517 (319) -61.7%
PRC Total PEIAE 395,574 436,516 (40,942) -9.4%
Taiwan =) ]
Products =M 125,619 138,770 (13,151) -9.5%
Services BRFE 6,680 8,012 (1,332) -16.6%
Entrustment it - - - n/a7~iE A
Taiwan Total AREETT 132,299 146,782 (14,483) -9.9%
Others Hibih =
Products =M 9,484 8,484 1,000 11.8%
Services AR 735 919 (184) -20.0%
Entrustment it - - - n/a7~iE
Others Total HitibEAAST 10,219 9,403 816 8.7%

OPERATING PROFITS BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION

B E| D 2

Others
Hithith &

09

08

09
08

09
08

%IE/JIIJ.

A

1 15,910

(6,969)
(10,542)

0 74,907

192,021
T 255,201
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PRC Market

The threat of global recession had seriously affected customers’ attitude
towards consumption, leading to the decline of product sales in the PRC
market by 18.7% in the first half of 2009. The decline had been stabilized
and full year sales only saw a drop of 8.7% to HK$390.8 million in 2009,
compared with HK$428.2 million in 2008. The product gross margin still

remained at a high rate of 85.0% (2008: 90.7%).

Operating profit and net profit decreased by HK$63.2 million and HK$63.5

million respectively for the year under review.

Taiwan Market

Taiwan market also experienced similar trend as in PRC market. During
2009, product sales in Taiwan market declined by 9.5% to HK$125.6 million
as compared with HK$138.8 million in 2008. Operating profit and net profit
decreased by HK$59.0 million and HK$52.0 million.

Distribution channels

Franchisee-
owned  Entrusted
Spa Spa
BRARED mEE
Store Number by Ownership ~ E##E &5 ZitgE
As at 31 December 2009 RZBEAF+=A=1-R KERL  kERD
Taiwan aE 428 -
PRC hEKHE 1,125 -
Others HithE 53 -
Total Foh 1,606 -
RREERE S ZIEHEE
Store Number by Ownership R-BENE
As at 31 December 2009 +=ZA=+-~H
Taiwan =)
PRC FEIARBE
Others Hvi
Total st
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Self-
owned Total
Spa Spa
BELE KERD
KERL g
9 437
1,182
2 55
18 1,624
Franchisee-
owned
mEEES
428
1,125
53
1,606

FR B K BE T 5

EFEERHMBARE  BEEEHBRE &
BPEAET S ERBEEERN_STAE LY
ETHRI187% - BMBHBEBIEE  —STTNE
S EHEHER -TT)\F 428,200,000 T T
#:8.7% £ 390,800,00058 7T ° E RIBEREFR R
HRTES5.0% M EKFE(ZEENEF 1 90.7%) ©

Bl 8 F E 2 &8 & R R AR 5 5 263,200,000
77T }63,500,000/8 7T ©

BEmE
REMBZERHEPHAAKERGESE - KT
ZhE RETSZERHEEEE_ZEN\F
2 138,800,000 3% 7t & 2> 9.5% & 125,600,000 &
TC o £ EFI R &R 2 BlE 459,000,000 T K
52,000,000/8 7T °

DEHRE
Self-

Entrusted owned Total Group Retail Grand
Counter Counter Counter Total Channel Total
ZitlE BELE Ey %8 2E k]

EL | EU F-by Ehy B @zt

- - - 437 3,079 3516

15 47 62 1,194 - 1,194

- - - 55 - 55

15 47 62 1,686 3,079 4,765
Self- Retail

Entrusted owned Channel Total

EiRe HEKE ZERE et

- 9 3,079 3,516

15 54 - 1,194

- 2 - 55

15 65 3,079 4,765
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Distribution channels (Continued)

2009 2008
Average  Average
2009 2008 sales sales
Average| Average | perstore  per store
store* store* | ZEBBNE | ZBENE
Average sales per store  BREEHTVHHER ZETAE ZZE\F SHER SHES
5 JEH F15 4 Changes
THHE FHHAY HES tHER 28
HKS HK$ HK$ %
BT BT BT
PRC B A BE 1,352.0 1,487.5 | 293,000 293,000 - -
Taiwan*** =) 442.0 452.0 | 299,000/ 300,000 (1,000) -0.3%
Group total*™ SEAET 1,794.0 1,939.5 | 294,000 295,000 (1,000) -0.3%

Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period total)/2
Group total does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia turnover and store
count.

Taiwan sales figure excluded retail sales of “Fonperi” brand products which are sold
by different distribution channel.

The Group principally derives its income from our unique distribution channels,
namely spas and counters in department stores. As at 31 December 2009,
there were 1,624 spas and 62 counters. All spas provide a variety of services,
including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis,
whereas counters in department stores usually provide skin care analysis.

As at 31 December 2009, there were a total of 1,606 franchisee spas, and 18
spas and 47 counters which are directly operated by the Group. There were
also 15 counters entrusted to reputable operators.

A total of 184 new stores were opened and 510 stores were closed

during the year under review. The closure was mainly due to franchisees’
violation of franchise terms as concluded by our store audit carried out
during 2009. Franchisees who sold non-Natural Beauty products, failed to
achieve minimum targets or failed to attend our free and compulsory training
programs would have the franchise arrangement terminated. Through the
elimination of those non-compliant stores, a good and consistent franchise
network is maintained, thus ensuring the service quality for consumers.

* T EEHE B LU (HRR ST + HIRAET) 25T E

= EEAHTEEREE BIRERATEE
FEREHEE -

= AEEERAFTEEERBTESHRERES
[Fonperi |RIEERTES -

FAEERSFTERBEBEZKEPLREER
AEBEIHRE R-EENF+ZA=T—
B REEHE1,624KBEROKE{EEE - &
KEPORESERY - BFEKE  ABRS
BEEURKEEESTRYE  MAEAREE
—REBEREEEDN

RZBZAE+ZA=+—H  ~EEHE1,606
RNERAKEAR O M B ELE 18K ER O KR47
EEHE > SE1IEREEZTEFTLEELE -

REBFER - AEES LR 184EHIER 5
Bo10BIEHER - BN EIRARAKRER-Z
TNFETERES  BRIPOMBEFERME
RS - EAEMHMEFARKER » REgE
IREEEIREAEBRMA 2 RE RIS
w2 EEREHMBR WAL - EEAZRE
REERZIERHE  AEESAIHESREFNE —
MEEERR  BRATFEMHBERE -
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Distribution channels (Continued)

Despite the drop in sales and decrease in the number of stores, the average
sales per store in 2009 remained stable. Average sales per store in PRC in
2009 is the same as that in 2008. In Taiwan, average sales per store was also
down by 0.3% from HK$300,000 to HK$299,000 during 2009.

Franchised spas are owned by franchisees and are responsible for the capital
investment of their spas. They are obliged to use “Natural Beauty” or “NB”
brand for products in their spas.

Retail Business

For our “Fonperi” retail products, the number of retail outlets in Taiwan has
decreased from 3,628 as at 31 December 2008 to 3,079 points of sales as at
31 December 2009.

We will scale down the operation of the retail business and focus on our high
margin core business.

Research and Development

The Group puts much emphasis on research and development so as to
maintain our competitive edge as well as improving the quality of existing
products and developing new products. The Group has been collaborating
with overseas cosmetic companies on technological development and
biotechnology materials were imported from Europe, Japan and Australia and
applied to over 700 NB’s products. The Group’s research and development
team comprises 13 members and a number of overseas consultants

with experience and expertise in cosmetics, medical, pharmacy and bio-
chemistry. NB’s products are constantly enhanced and modified with the use
of new ingredients developed by its research and development team. The
Group believes that the collaboration of experts with different expertise and
experience, together with Dr. Tsai’s over 30 years of industry experience and
knowledge, will give rise to high quality beauty and skin care products. NB
principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture the products and adopts
special formulation to cater to the specific needs of women with delicate skin.
NB’s products are attentive to the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting
effects.
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Research and Development (Continued)

In terms of new products development, the research and development team
will take into account the feedback and advice from senior management

of the Group. Prototype of new products will be distributed to over 1,000
selected senior beauty professionals. In accordance with the outcome of the
tests, refinements or modifications to the products may be made prior to its
full commercial launch, with a view to ensuring the high quality, effectiveness
and safety standard of NB’s products. When a product requires registration
with relevant authorities, it will be done before it is launched in the market. All
NB products are carefully produced to meet all relevant regulations.

NB has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human genome
and stem cell technology, in the development of anti-aging NB-1 product
family and other products for spot removing, whitening, anti-allergy and
slimming. With Dr. Tsai’s over 30 years of experience in the beauty and

skin care industry and the strong professional portfolio of our research and
development staff members, NB enjoys competitive advantages in the
research and development of beauty and skin care products.

The total research and development costs in 2009 amounted to HK$2.5
million compared with HK$1.7 million in 2008.

New Products

Our flagship product, NB-1 products family includes anti-aging NB-1 series,
NB-1 Whitening series, NB-1 anti-allergy, NB-1 pore refining series, etc.
During 2009, over 331,000 sets/bottles (2008: 271,000 sets/bottles) of
NB-1 family products were sold with a turnover of HK$210.8 million (2008:
HK$200.2 million), accounting for more than one-third of total product sales
recorded during the year under review.

Sales of health food and supplement products registered remarkable
growth of 90.1% from HK$47.4 million to HK$90.1 million. Health food and
supplement products were the key growth driver in 2009.

During 2009, the Group continued to enrich the product range and launched
65 new products, including 26 new health supplement products.
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Human Resources

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a total of 993 employees, of

whom 777 were based in PRC, 198 in Taiwan and 18 in other areas. Total
remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2009 was approximately
HK$108.7 million (2008: HK$97.3 million), including retirement benefits

cost of HK$12.6 million (2008: HK$10.4 million). Competitive remuneration
packages are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff and are
reviewed on a regular basis.

During the year, the Group has appointed new directors to strengthen the
management team. In addition, the Group’s chief executive officer and vice
president of franchise management have been on board since January 2010
and chief operating officer/chief financial officer has been on board since
February 2010. Leveraging the extensive franchise network management
experience of the new management team, the Group is confident of the future
development of our business.

The Group maintains good relations with our employee and is committed to
offering them training. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to our franchisees on a regular basis, so as to
promote and maintain the quality and consistency of the services provided.

In addition, the Group adopted a share option scheme on 11 March 2002,
with a view to providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contributed to the success of the Group’s operations. The Directors may, at
their discretion, invite any employee or director of the Group or any qualified
person as set out in the scheme, to subscribe for shares.

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s major capital expenditures were related to self-owned spas,
office renovation, IT infrastructure and machinery in our factories. There were
HK$17.1 million additions to fixed assets in 2009 (2008: HK$35.4 million),
comprising renovation cost and the cost incurred as a result of additional
furniture and fixtures for our new Taiwan office amounting to HK$10.0 million.

Franchisees are responsible for the capital expenditures of their spas.
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We remain optimistic towards the Group’s business in PRC market. We
believe PRC market would be one of the emerging markets to outperform
other countries or regions in the coming years. The domestic consumer
market in Taiwan also rebounded due mainly to the opening up of the tourism
industry to PRC visitors. The Group is confident of benefiting from better
consumer sentiment in the coming years.

Meanwhile, the Group will also focus on achieving cost effectiveness,
enhancing product sales and profits while seeking opportunities for further
growth in the future.

Despite the effects brought by the economic downturn, sales of health food
and supplements segment performed well. We believe that it will become a
significant source of revenue for the Group in the future and we will allocate
more resources to promote and market the services in this area. We will
launch new products including health food and supplements in both the
PRC and Taiwan markets to meet with customers’ changing needs and
preferences. We believe that the comprehensive product range will give us
flexibility to cope with the market challenges ahead. We will also focus on the
franchisee network development through a new store format, with the aim to
enhance consumers’ awareness of the brand “Natural Beauty”.

The Group also has also strengthened its professional management team

by recruiting the chief executive officer and chief operating officer/chief
financial officer and some key management positions like the Vice President
of Franchise Management from multinational companies. The board believes
that their expert experience in management will be beneficial to the expansion
and development of the Group in the future.
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The Board and management of the Company are committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The Board had adopted Corporate
Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”) (available on website:
www.nblife.com/ir) which gives guidance on how corporate governance
principles are applied to the Company.

The Company applied the principles and compiled with all the code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following
summarises the Company’s corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.

A. Directors

Details of Directors’ attendance records in 2009 are as follows:

Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu BEEIEL
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta THELE

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Note 1)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Note 2)

B AL ()
Bt (FE2)

FHTEFE

Patrick Thomas SIEWERT %4 (Ff3t3)
Gregory Michael ZELUCK 54 (Kt3E3)
BE Tt (HiE3)

REELL (M)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Note 3)
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (Note 3)
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan (Note 3)
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina (Note 3)
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A. Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTEE

Mr. YEH Liang-Fei (Note 4) ERBEE(Hi4)

Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu-Chen (Note 4) BRERY & £ (4)

Mr. CHEN Ching (Note 4) B (M)

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (Note 5) Francis GOUTENMACHERSE 4 (Ki3E5)
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Note 5) BEELZL (D)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Note 5) BRIRIE 54 (FHE5)

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Note 5) BFTRE (D)

Notes:

(1) Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was redesignated as non-executive director on
1 February 2010

(2)  Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was redesignated as non-executive director on 24
November 2009

(8)  Appointed on 24 November 2009
(4)  Resigned on 1 February 2010

(5)  Appointed on 1 February 2010

Directors are consulted to include any matter in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. The Company aims
at giving reasonable notice generally for all other Board meetings.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and advises the Board on corporate governance and compliance
matters.
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A. Directors (Continued)

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and its committee’s (“Board Committee”) meetings,
which would be sent to Directors within a reasonable time (generally
within 14 days) after each meeting and would be made available
for inspection by Directors and Board Committee members.

Natural Beauty’s CG Guidelines allow Directors to take
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held for
any material transactions with connected persons. Independent
Non-Executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such
meeting.

The Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles’) provide
for voting and quorum requirements conforming with the Code
requirements.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu serves as the Chairman, Mr. Gregory Michael
ZELUCK and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta were appointed as vice-chairmen
with effect from 24 November 2009. Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK
was ceased as vice-chairman and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
was appointed as the vice-chairman of the Company with effect
from 1 February 2010. Mr. TSENG Hsin Sheng John serves as

the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 4 January 2010. The
Chairman focuses on Group strategic and Board issues while the
Chief Executive Officer has the overall responsibility for operations
and development.

The Chairman has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board’s
responsibilities.

The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors. (See
Section A6 — “Supply of and access to information” for further
details).
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A. Directors (Continued)

Composition of the Board, by category of Directors, including
names of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors are disclosed in all corporate communications.

All Directors, including Executive and Non-Executive Directors,
serve three-year terms, and are subject to re-election.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s articles of
association, any new director appointed shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK,
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Ms.
FENG Janine Junyuan, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-
Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s
articles of association, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then a number
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting. Mr. LEE Ming-Ta and Dr. SU Chien-
Cheng will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On appointment, new Directors will be given a comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal counsel, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are members of the
Audit Committee. Individual independent Non-Executive Directors
are also members of Remuneration Committee or Executive
Committee.
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A. Directors (Continued) A. EE@®)

There was satisfactory attendance for Board and Board Committee

meetings in 2009.

Throughout the year, Directors complied with the required
standards of the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the
principal continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors
as a result of the listing of the securities of the Company on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and (b)
the systems and procedures that the Company, its Directors and
senior management should follow in order to ensure compliance

with such obligations.

Board papers were sent to all Directors at least three days before

the date of the Board/Board Committee meeting.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and

other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by

Directors and Board Committee members.
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B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management B. EERSREEAESTHMH

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee. Full
terms of reference are available on the Company’s website:

www.nblife.com/ir.

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT were
appointed as members of the remuneration committee of the
Company with effect from 24 November 2009. Dr. SU Chien-
Cheng, Mr. Yeh Liang Fei, Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu Chen and Mr.
CHEN Ching resigned and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr.
Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Ms. Su-Mei
THOMPSON were appointed as the members of the remuneration

committee of the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.

With reference to the remuneration committee charter, each
committee member had carefully reviewed and considered the
terms of the service contracts during the year, contribution of each
of the Directors to the Group, the Directors’ experience in the
beauty and spa business and the market rate paid by comparable

companies.

Independent professional advice will be sought to supplement

internal resources where appropriate.
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C. Accountability and Audit

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans

and actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts of each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2009, the Directors
have:

° approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which are issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

o selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;

o made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable;

° prepared the accounts on going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 64.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as to information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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TEERRE
C. Accountability and Audit C. BERE®

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and system

of internal controls and compliance with best practices. The
Executive Directors and Chief Financial Officer also report to the
Audit Committee on key findings regarding internal controls. The
Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any material issues to the
full Board.

The Board’s review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the internal
control system and considered the internal control system of the
Group has been implemented effectively.

Draft minutes prepared by the Company Secretary are sent to
members within 14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit
Committee members is former partners of the external auditors.
Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) are available on
the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in turn
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be reappointed as
the external auditor for 2010.

During 2009, the Group paid or accrued to the auditor HK$3.7
million for 2009 statutory audit services of the Company. The
Group did not receive any non-audit services from the auditor
during 2009.
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C. Accountability and Audit (Continued)

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.

D. Delegation by the Board

There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- Long-term objectives and strategies;

—  Extension of group activities into new business areas;

- Preliminary announcements of interim and final results;

- Material banking facilities;

- Material acquisitions and disposals;

- Material connected transactions; and

- Annual internal controls assessment.

The Board has established three Board Committees (Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee)
with specific terms of reference available at the Company’s

website: www.nblife.com/ir.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which reports address their work and findings.
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E. Communication with Shareholders

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Committees and their
delegator are requested to attend the forthcoming AGM.

There were one AGM held since the issue of last annual report.

Due to the busy schedule of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu in PRC and in
Taiwan Mr. CHEN Ching, an Independent Non-Executive Director,
attended and chaired the AGM held on 5 June 2009.

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir to provide comprehensive
information related to shareholders.

Procedures for demanding a poll were set out in the notice of AGM
during the year. These procedures were also explained during the
AGM proceedings.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited was appointed as scrutineer during the AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the meetings
and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the
Company at www.nblife.com/ir.

Institutional shareholder communications
We consider it is important to have dialogues with institutional shareholders
based on mutual understanding of objectives.

We were also awarded a “Certificate of Excellence for IR websites in Hong
Kong” by Investor Relations Global Ranking (IRGR) in 2010.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor relations
section of the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.
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Aged 62, the founder and the Chairwoman of the Group. Dr. Tsai founded
the Group in 1972 and is responsible for the Group’s overall management,

strategic planning and development, and formulation of company policies and
business strategy. Dr. Tsai is a renowned and authoritative expert in Taiwan,
PRC, as well as in Southeast Asia with over 30 years. In these years, Dr. Tsai

has been awarded numerous honours, positions and prizes such as:

e Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the USA
e Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association

e Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

e Taiwan’s Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

e Qutstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women’s
Business Association

e “Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

e “Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

e Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme

“Ji Qing Chuang Ye” of CCTV

e Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

e 1 Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

e Chairman of Association of Beauty Technique in Taipei

e Chairman of Association of Beauty and Hairstyle in Taiwan

Aged 62, the husband of Dr. Tsai, is the Chairperson and an executive
director of the Group. Mr. Lee is also the father of Dr. Su Chien-Cheng and
Dr. Su Sh-Hsyu, both are non-executive directors of the Company. He is
responsible for the general administration and internal management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. Lee had worked for various

financial institutions at senior management level for over 10 years in corporate

management and staff training. Mr. Lee graduated in Fengchia University in
Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and Insurance.
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Aged 38, the son of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu (Chairperson and an executive director)
and Mr. Lee Ming-Ta (executive director) and he is the elder brother of Dr.
Su Sh-Hsyu who is also a non-executive director of the Company. Dr. Su
was an executive director and re-designated as non-executive director on 1
February 2010. He was responsible for the financial management, business
development and strategic management of the group. Dr. Su graduated
from the University of Westminster in UK with a master degree of business
administration and obtained his PhD in Business Administration in Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999.

Aged 36, is the daughter of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu (Chairperson and an executive
director) and Mr. Lee Ming-Ta (executive director) and the younger sister of
Dr. Su Chien-Cheng, is also a non-executive director of the Company. Dr.
Su was an executive director and re-designated as non-executive director on
24 November 2009. Dr. Su Sh-Hsyu graduated from the London School of
Economics with a Master of Science degree in industrial relations, personnel
management and human resources management and obtained her PhD

in international and comparative education from Columbia University in

New York, United States. Dr. Su Sh-Hsyu has been actively engaged in the
marketing and business development of the Natural Beauty Group in Taiwan
and China during the period from 2004 to 2009.

Aged 41, is currently a managing director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong

and is focused on Asian buyout and growth capital investments in sectors
including consumer, financial services, industrial and healthcare. Ms. Feng
has been working at Carlyle since 1998, and has been responsible for several
investments in China. Ms. Feng currently serves as a director of China Pacific
Insurance (Group) Company Limited. Prior to joining Carlyle, Ms. Feng was

a senior associate at Credit Suisse First Boston’s investment banking group
in New York. Ms. Feng received a Master of Business Administration degree
from Harvard Business School and a Bachelor of Arts degree, summa cum
laude and Phi Beta Kappa, from Middlebury College. She was appointed as
the Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009.
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Aged 37, is currently a director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong. Ms. Ng has
been working at Carlyle since 1998 and has been a director since January
2006. At Carlyle, Ms. Ng has overseen investments in, among others, Taiwan
Broadband Communications Co., Ltd, Eastern Broadcasting Company
Limited, China Pacific Insurance (Group) Company Limited, kbro Co., Ltd.
and Natural Beauty. Ms. Ng currently sits on the board of directors of a
number of companies in which funds of Carlyle have investments, including,
without limitation, kbro Co., Ltd. and Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited.

Prior to joining Carlyle, Ms. Ng was an associate with Exor Asia, the direct
investment arm of the Agnelli Group of Italy from 1997 to 1998. Ms. Ng
received a Bachelor of Science degree in management science from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. She was appointed as the Group’s
non-executive director on 24 November 2009.

Aged 54, is currently a senior director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong. Mr.
Siewert has been working at Carlyle since April 2007. Mr. Siewert currently
sits on the board of directors of a variety of companies in which funds

of Carlyle have investments, including, without limitation, kbro Co., Ltd.,
Zhejiang Kaiyuan Hotel Management Co., Ltd. and Coates Hire Limited. Mr.
Siewert also sits on the board of directors of Avery Dennison Corporation and
Computime International Limited. Mr. Siewert has also been the chairman of
Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited since August 2008. Prior to joining
Carlyle, Mr. Siewert worked at The Coca-Cola Company from 2001 to 2007 as
group president and chief operating officer Asia, and was previously president
of Kodak Professional and senior vice president of Eastman Kodak Company.
Mr. Siewert received a Master of Science degree in service management
from Rochester Institute of Technology and a Bachelor of Science degree

in business administration from Elmhurst College. He was appointed as the
Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009 and Vice Chairman on
1 February 2010.
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Aged 48, is currently a managing director of Carlyle and is a co-head of

the Fund. Mr. Zeluck has been working at Carlyle since July 1998 and

has been a managing director since that time. At Carlyle, Mr. Zeluck has
overseen investments in a variety of companies across Asia, including,
without limitation, Taiwan Broadband Communications Co., Ltd, Eastern
Broadcasting Company Limited, Pacific China Holdings Limited, kbro Co.,
Ltd., Ta Chong Bank Limited and Natural Beauty. Mr. Zeluck currently sits
on the board of directors of a number of companies in which funds of Carlyle
have investments, including, without limitation, Caribbean Group, Hyundai
Communications & Network Co. Limited, Eastern Broadcasting Company
Limited, kbro Co., Ltd. and Ta Chong Bank Limited. Prior to joining Carlyle,
Mr. Zeluck worked in Merrill Lynch’s Asian high yield team and spent 13
years in Lehman Brothers’ corporate finance and merchant banking groups,
approximately four of which were spent in Asia. Mr. Zeluck received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Princeton University, graduating magna cum
laude in East Asian studies. He was appointed as the Group’s non-executive
director on 24 November 2009.

Aged 68, had worked closely with some of the most prestigious names in the
business, including Cartier, Van Cleef & Arpels, Piaget, Vacheron Constantin,
Alfred Dunhill and Jaeger-LeCoultre, etc. He had also been the Managing
Director of Cartier France, the CEO of Piaget International, and the President
of The Hong Kong Watch Importers’ Association from 2004 to 2006. Mr.
Goutenmacher was also the former CEO of Richemont Asia Pacific, one

of the world’s leading luxury groups and in 20086, retired from Richemont

and established Gouten Consulting Limited to help luxury brands with their
marketing and strategic development of their luxury brands in the challenging
and rapidly emerging market of Asia-Pacific. Mr. Goutenmacher is currently
an independent non-executive director of I.T Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director of Gouten
Consulting Limited, an advisor to several local luxury groups, and sits on the
board of directors of several non-listed companies. He was appointed as the
Group’s independent non-executive director on 1 February 2010.
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Aged 43, obtained her Master of Business Administration (Dean’s List) degree
from IMD of Lausanne, Switzerland in 2001, a BCL (1 class) degree from
Oxford University, England in 1989 and a BA (Law) degree from Cambridge
University, England in 1987 and is a UK qualified solicitor. Ms. Thompson is
currently the Executive Director of The Women’s Foundation, a leading Non-
Government Organisation promoting the advancement of women in Hong
Kong. Previously, she held senior regional management positions at Walt
Disney Television Asia-Pacific where she was Regional Director of Legal &
Business Affairs, the Financial Times where she served as Managing Director
for Asia and a member of the FT’s Global Management Board, and Christie’s
where she was Senior Vice-President, Strategic Business Development for
Asia. She started her career as a corporate finance lawyer at Linklaters and
served in the firm’s London, Paris and Hong Kong offices. Ms. Thompson is
currently on the Board of Save The Children Hong Kong and is a Corporate
Member of The Cheltenham Ladies College in the United Kingdom. She was
appointed as the Group’s independent non-executive director on 1 February
2010.

Aged 61, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economic from National Chung-
Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions
and represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various
countries and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium
from 1974 to 1979. Mr. Chen was the Board Chairman of the Institute for
Information Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009, and he is currently the
Board Chairman of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan,
the Board Chairman of Teknowledge Development Corp. in Taiwan, a board
member of SICDC Ltd. & SICDC Vision Technology Ltd. in BVI, a member
of the Advisory Board of Newport Digital Technologies,Inc. in USA and an
independent director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan. He was appointed as the
Group’s independent non-executive director on 1 February 2010.
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Aged 55, obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign, USA in 1982 and his PhD in
Strategic Management from National Chengchi University of Taiwan in 1987.
He is currently a professor of the Department of Business Administration

in National Chengchi University, the Chairman of Yangtze Associates,

the President of Huiyang Private Equity Fund Co., Ltd., the Supervisor of
ASUSTeK Computer Inc., a director of Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation
and RITEK Corporation, an independent director of AU Optronics
Corporation, and ASROCK Incorporation. Mr. Yang was also the Deputy
Minister of the Ministry of Finance of Taiwan, the Managing Director and
Acting Chairman of Bank of Taiwan, the President of China Development
Industrial Bank of Taiwan and an associate professor in National Chengchi
University and National Chiao Tung University. He was appointed as the
Group’s independent non-executive director on 1 February 2010.

Aged 60, joined the Group as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from

4 January 2010. Mr. Tseng graduated from American Graduate School of
International Management (Thunderbird), USA with a Master in Business
Administration in 1982. He was the Chairman and President, Greater China
of The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company from 2005 to 2008. Prior to that,
Mr. Tseng had been working in Eastman Kodak Company from 1982 to
2005, and had served as the General Manager and Corporate Vice President
of Consumer and Professional Imaging in Greater China and Greater Asia
regions from 2000 to 2005.

Aged 53, joined the Group as the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer in February 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a Master in Business Administration in 1990 and a Bachelor of
Social Sciences in the same university in 1979. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Chan was the General Manager of Evergreen Packaging (Shanghai) Co.
Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Chan had been working in Eastman Kodak Company
from 1980 to 2007, and held broad spectrum of senior positions in general

management, sales and marketing, finance, operations, product development

and project management including the go-to-market transformation director,
regional operations director and general manager of Kodak.
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Aged 49, joined the Group as the Vice President of Franchise Management
with effect from 5 January 2010. Mr. Lee graduated from the National
Chengchi University with a Bachelor in Business Administration. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Lee was the Managing Director of L & L Marketing
Co. Limited and Connoisseur Travel. Prior to that, Mr. Lee had been working
in Eastman Kodak Company from 1996 to 2004, and held broad spectrum of
senior positions in general management of Kodak and Key Account, Greater
China Regional Director of Kodak Express Franchise Program. He also
worked for Unilever (Taiwan) Company Limited, Circle K Convenience Store
(Taiwan) Limited and a subsidiary of Li & Fung (Retailing) Limited with senior
positions of product manager, marketing manager and executive director of
these companies with extensive experience in franchise store development
and management.

Aged 51, Group Chief Operating Officer, is responsible for consolidating and
expanding the Group operations. Mr. Shiao graduate from Department of
Journalism of Taiwan Culture University in 1981. Prior to joining the Group

in October 2006, Mr. Shiao has over 23 years of operational management
experience in the consumer goods industry. He was the National Sales
Director of Energizer Schick Taiwan Limited, leading the sales team of

the company operating globally in the broad categories of household and
personal care products. He also worked for Warner-Lambert in Taiwan as the
National Sales Directors and Unilever Taiwan as Channel Sales Manager.

Aged 43, Supply Chain Director of NB Shanghai and is responsible for

the supply chain management in the PRC, including ERP, logistics and IT
department. Mr. Wang was graduated in the Chinese Culture University in
Taiwan with a Bachelor of Mass Communication. He was the head of IT and
also held senior position in Amigo Logistics Corporation in Taiwan. Mr. Wang
has been working in China since year 2000. Prior to joining our Group in
2006, Mr. Wang held senior positions in Dragon Logistics Co., Ltd and Trust-
Mart Hypermarket.
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Aged 49, is the Head of accounting and finance for NB PRC region and is
responsible for the accounting and financial management function of the
Group’s PRC operation. Ms. Yan graduated from the Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor degree in economics in 1983
and graduated from West Virginia University in the US with a master degree
in Statistics in 1997. Prior to joining the Group in 2000, Ms. Yan worked

in commercial bank in US and China holding management position and
has over 10 years of working experience in internal control and business
administration.

Aged 55, is the head of accounting and finance for NB Taiwan and is
responsible for the financial management and accounting function of the
Group’s Taiwan Business. Prior to joining the Group in 1980, Ms. Fong
worked in an international accounting firm and has served management
positions in a number of corporations in the region and has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, finance and auditing.

Aged 37, is the Sales and Marketing Consultant of NB Taiwan and is
responsible for the sales and marketing of our franchise operation, self-

own spas, as well as the branding in Taiwan. Ms. Yang was graduated

from Shih-Chien University in Taiwan and also studied in Fashion Institute of
Technology in New York. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Ms. Yang had
been working in various organizations, such as Otto, Citibank etc., in the field
of merchandising and marketing. She is also the wife of Dr. Su Chien Cheng.
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Aged 43, Brand Director of NB Taiwan and is responsible for the branding
and marketing execution in Taiwan. Mr. Lu was graduated with a MBA major
in international management in Thunderbird, American Graduate School

of International Management of USA in 1998. Prior to joining the Group in
March 2007, Mr. Lu has extensive product and branding experiences of fast
moving consumer products including Product Manager of Warner Lambert
and Senior Product Manager of L’'OREAL Taiwan.

Aged 41, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the financial planning and monitoring. He graduated
from the University of Hull in the UK with a bachelor’s degree in economics
(economics and accounting) in 1992 and graduated from Richard Ivey School
of Business with University of Western Ontario, Canada with an Executive
MBA in 2008. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in July 2004,

Mr. Chan worked in an international accounting firm and had served senior
financial positions in a NASDAQ listed company and a renowned German
exhibition company.
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Directors’ Report
EETHREE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty and
aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and
spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 66.

An interim dividend of HK$0.035 per share amounting to HK$70,055,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.040 per share to the shareholders
on the register of members on 24 May 2010, amounting to approximately
HK$80,084,000. Details of the dividends are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover
and purchases for the year respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2009 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. The fair value increase of
approximately HK$137,000 has been recognised in the profit or loss. Details
of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:
Executive directors:
Dr. TSAI Yen Yu

(alias Dr. Tsai Yen Pin)
Mr. LEE Ming Ta

(alias Mr. Lee Ming Tah)
Dr. SU Chien Cheng

Dr. SU Sh Hsyu

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT

Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina

Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan

(redesignated as a non-executive director
on 1 February 2010)

(redesignated as a non-executive director
on 24 November 2009)

(appointed on 24 November 2009)

(appointed on 24 November 2009)

(appointed on 24 November 2009)

(appointed on 24 November 2009)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. YEH Liang Fei

Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu Chen

Mr. CHEN Ching

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON

Mr. CHEN Ruey Long

Mr. YANG Tze Kaing

(resigned on 1 February 2010)

(resigned on 1 February 2010)

(resigned on 1 February 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2010)

(appointed on 1 February 2010)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s articles of association, any
new director appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. NG Shieu
Yeing Christina, Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER,
Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey Long and Mr. YANG Tze Kaing will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. LEE Ming
Ta and Dr. SU Chien Cheng will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND VICE CHAIRMEN

The Company has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Executive Committee.

Dr. SU Sh Hsyu and Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina were appointed as
members of the audit committee of the Company with effect from 24
November 2009. Dr. SU Sh Hsyu, Mr. YEH Liang Fei, Mrs. CHEN Shieh Shu
Chen and Mr. CHEN Ching resigned and Dr. SU Chien Cheng, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey Long and Mr.
YANG Tze Kaing were appointed as the members of the audit committee of
the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.

Dr. SU Chien Cheng and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT were appointed as
members of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 24
November 2009. Dr. SU Chien Cheng, Mr. YEH Liang Fei, Mrs. CHEN SHIEH
Shu Chen and Mr. CHEN Ching resigned and Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Dr. SU Sh
Hsyu, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. CHEN Ruey Long and Ms. Su Mei
THOMPSON were appointed as the members of the remuneration committee
of the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.
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ZEARTATEREEEEE B_ZE—ZTF=
B—BifEN -

&k 22 39 18 = & Patrick Thomas SIEWERT ¢ 4 &
ZEARLNATHNEEGEEZE B-TENF
TR+ HHAREN - HEHREL  EREX
£ FRENB LI REBEECET  MEKRE
B+ - HFHEE L - Gregory Michael ZELUCKSE
4+ RIEEEERAZBELZTAEZRTALTLE
FMEERZE BT TF_A—BHBEM -
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND VICE CHAIRMEN

(Continued)

An executive committee of the Company was established in 2009. Dr.

SU Chien Cheng, Dr. SU Sh Hsyu, Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT and Mr.
Gregory Michael ZELUCK were appointed with effect from 24 November
2009. Dr. SU Chien Cheng resigned and Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER and Mr. YANG Tze Kaing were appointed as members
of the executive committee of the Company with effect from 1 February
2010, to which the Board will, until it otherwise determines, delegate such
powers, authorities and discretions as may from time to time be approved
by the Board, including, without limitation, all of the powers, authorities
and discretions to consider the strategic direction of the Group and review
the monthly business and financial performance of the Group and the
implementation and execution of the business plan and annual budget of the
Group.

Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK and Mr. LEE Ming Ta were appointed as vice-
chairmen of the Company with effect from 24 November 2009. Mr. Gregory

Michael ZELUCK resigned and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT was appointed
as the vice chairman of the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.

The compositions of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the executive committee of the Company as well as the vice chairmen of the
Company upon the last changes with effective from 1 February 2010 and as
of date of this report are set out below:

BEEZEEREIERE @

ARABRRZBZNEFERIHAITEES - HEHTE
+ -~ BFFHEE L Patrick Thomas SIEWERT %
4 % Gregory Michael ZELUCK B £ EEZEE - B =
ZENFE+ AT HAREN - HEHELH
FEERPBAHITEEREZE > EFHREFBL - Francis
GOUTENMACHERA A R B FIIEZEAAE LD
FAMITZESZE BT ZEF-_A—HE%
Mo EEERREZSEES AT E 2
h RERBIEE SEETRAZSEAREEE
BEEZEED  BERBBEUAREHRAE
ESAERRTRRBURETRITAE@ME
BEtERFERESE -

Gregory Michael ZELUCKEE R Z=RHZESX LR R
FEBEQAAEEE  B-EEAFT+-AZ1+HN
H 4 ° Gregory Michael ZELUCK %t & BHE A
AFBIEFE » MPatrick Thomas SIEWERT £ %
ZERAEALTEEE BT ZSF_-_A—HE
AR o

BEREBR-Z-2F A -HERBELRH
EAH ARPEKZES FHEESRIAT
ZEEURADRREFEHIWT ¢

Director Audit Remuneration Executive Vice
Name of Director Type Committee Committee Committee Chairmen
BEEpE B8R EREEE FHzEE HBITEEE e
Dr. TSAI Yen Yu EEEELT ED Y Y
Mr. LEE Ming Ta ZERE A ED \
Dr. SU Chien Cheng BEHEL NED '
Dr. SU Sh Hsyu HEEEL NED Y Y
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT ~ Patrick Thomas SIEWERT% 4% NED Y Y Y
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK  Gregory Michael ZELUCK%E4E NED Y Y
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan BETLL NED
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina ~ RFEL+ NED Y
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER  Francis GOUTENMACHER%: 4 INED Y Y
Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON ARELL INED Y Y
Mr. CHEN Ruey Long MRk L INED Y Y
Mr. YANG Tze Kaing BFIEE INED Y Y
ED: Executive Director ED: BTES

NED: Non-Executive Director
INED: Independent Non-Executive Director

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2009, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$400,374,000 which represents the share premium and
retained profits of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors’ service contracts entered into between the Company and
certain directors were for a term of three years, commencing from 11 March
2008 in the case of Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Mr. LEE Ming Ta and Dr. SU Chien
Cheng; commencing from 21 September 2007 in the case of Dr. SU Sh
Hsyu; and commencing from 1 February 2010 in the case of Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey Long and Mr.
YANG Tze Kaing. These service contracts may be terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than three calendar months’ notice in writing.

There was no service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Ms. FENG
Janice Junyuan and Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina.

The initial annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts are
summarised as follows:

AR\ AR D Ik fe

E'\\‘— TENF+ZA=+—8 KXQAES

REB  ALPAIHIRFRREZEBEDNS
400,374,000,%75  REREDAR AT ZROEE
RAREE ST o

%gﬂﬁﬁ =] I\’J
AAREEFEEIT U 2EESRBENIRE=
F o %ﬁt\f‘rﬁi THERERFEHABLZE
NEHR-ZZNF=ZA+—-HHK  HFHE
:tzé,%’ﬂi,ﬁﬂﬁﬂ—q EEEAAZ+—HRARK
Francis GOUTENMACHER t 4 ~ BIZEE 2+ ~ R
HEEERGFILEZENFHAR-ZT—F
FZA—BHK - ZERBEPNTHEM—F0
HERETOR=ZEBANEMBEEKL -

7K A 7] I # B2 Patrick Thomas SIEWERT 4 4 »
Gregory Michael ZELUCKSE4. ~ SFETZ TR R
FELLTIRBEH -

REBZEMBEL P FEMSBRAOT

Annual

Director Annual increment on Discretionary
Name of Director type director fee director fee bonus
BEEng E=ER FEEEME ESHSFEILE BETEAL
Dr. TSAI Yen Yu EHEEEL ED $1,000,000 Note (a)Hfi5£(a) Note (o)H3F(0)
Mr. LEE Ming Ta THRESE ED $700,000 Note (a)Hft%(a) Note (b)Fff3E (o)
Dr. SU Chien Cheng BEHEL NED $600,000 Note (2)f}7E(@) Note (0)FfizE(D)
Dr. SU Sh Hsyu HmEL NED $600,000 Note (a)Pf{ £ (e) Note (0P (o)
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER Francis GOUTENMACHER %% INED $240,000 N/ATNE N/ATE A
Ms. Su Mei THOMPSON ARELL INED $240,000 N/ATNE A N/AT 3
Mr. CHEN Ruey Long TRIRME 4 INED $240,000 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A
Mr. YANG Tze Kaing BFIEE INED $240,000 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A
Total st $3,860,000

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFER
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Notes:

(@  The annual increment of the directors’ fee for executive directors and non-
executive directors shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year.

(b)  Executive directors and non-executive directors may receive bonus approved by
and at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all executive
directors and non-executive directors shall not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that
financial year of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, Mr. LEE Ming Ta had waived his
director fee for the year and Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Dr. SU Chien Cheng and Dr.
SU Sh Hsyu had waived half of the director fees for the year.

No director bonus was proposed nor paid for the year (2008:
HK$10,000,000).

Save as disclosed above, no director has any unexpired service contract
which is not determined by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests of the directors, the chief executive
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERROER @
REQATRGD REERONTE

Ordinary shares ZiER
% of the issued
share capital of
Number of the Company
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares HAELFE
BEEpgs ERtE ZERHE BITREEIH
Dr. TSAl'Yen Yu ™ Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
EHEBLO FEHA TR
Mr. LEE Ming Ta @ Interest of spouse 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ZERERER [y ty e
Dr. SU Chien Cheng ® Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
HEHELTe Bhka
Dr. SU Sh Hsyu ® Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
BmELToe BRAtkEm
Notes: 5T

(1) Dr. TSAI Yen Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in
turn, indirectly owns 50% of Standard Cosmos Limited. Standard Cosmos Limited
is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAI Yen Yu pursuant to Section 316
of the SFO. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to
Standard Cosmos Limited are attributable to Dr. TSAI.

(2)  Mr. LEE Ming Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen Yu and accordingly, is deemed
to be interested in the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to Dr.
TSAIl Yen Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

(38)  Each of Dr. SU Chien Cheng and Dr. SU Sh Hsyu is taken to be interested in the
1,314,030,000 shares of the Company which are indirectly owned by Starsign
International Limited pursuant to Sections 317 and 318 of the SFO by virtue of Dr.
SU Chien Cheng and Dr. SU Sh Hsyu being parties to a shareholders’ agreement
dated 15 October 2009 which imposes obligations or restrictions on the parties
thereto with respect to their use, retention or disposal of their interest in shares of
the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, the chief executive nor
their associates had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31 December 2009.

@

©)

& H E 1+ HEEANext Focus Holdings Limited
40%fE % » 7% 2 7 B % A Standard Cosmos
Limited 50% ¥ & - RIEFE 5 R B E %G1 £ 316
% » Standard Cosmos Limited B B E i+
2 Z1E%1558 o Fik » Standard Cosmos Limited
FEAE21,314,030,0000 A2 B A7 AT BB LI & o

THETRLEAEKRIBLIZERE  REESFR
HERHIES16ME > RMEIREREREH RN
21,314,030,000 8 RN A TR0 P B ©

RIEBRSRPEEAENTRIISIE  BRER
HETRESFEELTARHA-SZTNAETA
TEAZRRBBZTNS  ZHEREA - &
BRHERSREARAT KRG 2 =BT 45 HEm
ETHRY HFEABIRHESEBRLIEAR
8 4E 7 Starsign International Limited & 12 # & =~
1,314,030,000 &2 A R 7P B ©

BREXHEBEEN R-BEAF+ZA=1—
B BEES  FETHASIREZHEAL
RARQBDREEAEEEENEMRD - HER
NREHFPEEEAERILE -
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SHARE OPTIONS
The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During 2009, the Company did not grant any new share options. All

outstanding share options had been exercised and there was no share option
outstanding as at 31 December 2009.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share option

during the year:

Category 1: Employees

e
LN

AR BRBRE B 2 FHBRERN G B HRRME
26 °

REZZZAF - AEELEEESRHEHR

R - FTERTENIRECTE  MR-FR

NE+Z A=+ — BABEERITERRE

TREBERDAZRERFAN2E

AEI1 : ES

Outstanding
at Outstanding
Exercise beginning Granted Exercised Cancelled atend
Option type Date of grant Exercisable period price ofyear  duringyear  duringyear  during year of year
REA RER
AREER RitiBH i %8 HATR  REARE  RERTE  REREHR R AT
2007 Type | 27 July 2007 1 July 2008 to 26 July 2017 1.76 - - - - -
“ERLEE-§ “ERLE “ETN\EtA-HE
tA-t+tA “E—tELAZtRA
2007 Type 27 July 2007 1 July 2009 to 26 July 2017 1.76 383,659 - (383,659) - -
“ERLEECH ZERLE “EENELA-HE
tB=t+tH “E-tEtA-tRA
2007 Type Il 27 July 2007 1 July 2010 to 26 July 2017 1.76 255,772 - (255,772) - -
“EELEECE “ERLE “Z-ZEtA-HE
tA=t+tA “E—tELAZtRA
2008 Type | 16 July 2008 1 July 2009 to 15 July 2018 1.69 438,551 - (411,035) (27,516) -
“2E\55-§ ZEENE “EENELA-HE
tAt+~A “E2-N\EtATEA
2008 Type 16 July 2008 1 July 2010 to 15 July 2018 1.69 263,131 - (246,622) (16,509) -
“EE\FECE “EENE —Z-ZFtf-HE
tBt7H ~E-\EtAtEA
2008 Type Il 16 July 2008 1 July 2011 to 15 July 2018 1.69 175,420 - (164,414) (11,006) -
“ZE\FEZE b3 Y2 “2--%tf-HZE
tAt+~A “E-N\EtATER
1,516,533 - (1,461,502) (65,031) -

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

Category 1: Employees (Continued)

There were 940,641 options exercised and 940,641 ordinary shares were
allotted on 7 July 2009.

Standard Cosmos Limited made a mandatory general offer on 19 October
2009 for all the offer shares pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code
and to make an appropriate offer to the holders of any convertible securities,
warrants, options or subscription rights in compliance with Rule 13 of the
Takeovers Code. All of the 520,861 options granted but not vested under
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 11 March 2002 were
exercised in full and 520,861 ordinary shares were allotted on 2 November
2009 as a result.

There were 1,461,502 options exercised and 55,031 options cancelled during
the year ended 31 December 2009.

As an additional employee incentive, the Company paid the relevant option
holder a cash bonus in the amount of the total exercise price payable for the
exercise of the options. The option holders were required to use any such
cash bonus towards payment of the exercise price of the relevant options
and HK$2,514,698 of cash bonus had been paid and used directly for the
exercise of those options for 1,461,502 share issued.

There was no options granted to substantial shareholders, executive directors
or independent non-executive directors during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during

the year was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2009, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, the
following shareholders other than the directors of the Company had notified
the Company of relevant interests in the issued capital of the Company.

B RE @)

KA T (E)

AEI1 - ES (%)
RZZBEZAFEELHA LR @ 940,641 DR IREELT
& 940,641 R BIREE 3 o

Standard Cosmos Limited A=ZFHLE+ A+
HREWETRRAI261  BAAEREBROES
BENEZEWERE  YRBEWESAEANS
EHRRES  RRERE  RAREIREESE
ARHEEEWRE - IERBEEALAANR-_ZZ_F
A+ -—BFREMARAREAERETAREBZ
520,861 2 R IRFEC BEITE > 520,861 R Z B
EMR=—ZZAE+—A =B -

BE-_ZZAE+=-A=Z=+—BLEE
1,461,50210 FR IR FETE 1T 8 2 55,03 110 SR IR FEFERT
Ei=f

EBHBETIMNEEINEE  ANAFCE OEBRRKRE
BEARRSEEEMNMTERREREMNETE
BRERSRA - AREFEAEINAZERS®
ASXFHEBERREZITEE - AAFAEXHRE
16412,514,608/8 7T » W H ZEAETEZSRRE
LAZ$1T1,461,50288 1212 °

FRAUEGQEERR TESRHEULFNTE
ERHEARRE -

BEROBES 2ZH

R EXXPTIERRERT 810 - RENEMESR
RABHEEEMERLDE - MBELAHERME
REAEESEIT LEMNZH  BSARTESH
HEBAQXFAIEMEMEABRNRDHES
MR o

FERR

RIZZEZFAF+ZA=+—8  XAFARERS
REIEGRGIEIMREENETERREMETR » B
RARESBUN  UTREZHEERQARBEERN
RARERITRENEBER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

FERFR@)

RAERBRG REFERDEGFE

A2 ]G ETEO. 108 THIE B/

Percentage
Number of of the issued
ordinary shares share capital
beneficially held  of the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Nature of interest BRBE HARRCHT
TERFRE BB M BHEME EERYE REEAH
Efficient Market Investments Limited Beneficial owner 838,530,000 41.88%
BEEHERA
Adventa Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.82%
BRERA
Fortune Bright Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.82%
BxERA
Standard Cosmos Limited 1 Beneficial owner and interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ERREARZEGDRES
Starsign International Limited 1 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ZEHARES
Next Focus Holdings Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
SN AER
CA NB Limited 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
SEHARES
CA North Beach Limited 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ZEHARES
Carlyle Asia Partners IIl, L.P. 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
SN AER
Martin Currie Inc Beneficial owner 130,491,000 6.52%
BEEERA
Martin Currie Investment Management Beneficial owner 94,805,000 4.73%
BTUAREEEERAR BREEEA
Martin Currie Ltd 4 Interest of controlled companies 225,296,000 11.25%
SN AER
Martin Currie (Holdings) Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 225,296,000 11.25%
BT AR GER)BRDH SEHARES
Keywise Capital Management (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 181,210,000 9.05%
YEBREEE(FB)ERAA BREEEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos
Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments
Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such,
the 1,311,690,000 shares of the Company collectively held by Efficient Market
Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited
and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited
(totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company) are attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

(2)  Next Focus Holdings Limited directly owns 50% of Starsign International
Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company in which Starsign
International Limited is interested are attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited.

(8)  Carlyle Asia Partners lll, L.P. is the sole shareholder of CA North Beach Limited,
which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of CA NB Limited. CA NB Limited directly
owns 50% of Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of
the Company in which Starsign International Limited is interested are attributable
to CA NB Limited, CA North Beach Limited and Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P..

(4)  Martin Currie (Holdings) Limited is the sole shareholder of Martin Currie Ltd, which,
in turn, is the sole shareholder of Martin Currie Inc and Martin Currie Investment
Management. Martin Currie Inc and Martin Currie Investment Management directly
hold 130,491,000 (approximately 6.52%) and 94,805,000 (approximately 4.73%)
of the shares of the Company, respectively. As such, the 225,296,000 Natural
Beauty Shares (approximately 11.25%) held by Martin Currie Inc and Martin Currie
Investment Management are attributable to Martin Currie Ltd and Martin Currie
(Holdings) Limited.

Save as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2009.

FTERRKR @)

i

ZAPA
G

Bt

DNERD KRR G R (8

AR EEO. 10E T E B R (4)

Starsign International Limited % Standard Cosmos
Limited =2 M — B3R T &% 2 & % Efficient Market
Investments Limited » Adventa Group Limited &
Fortune Bright Group Limited 2 M — 3R o R ik
3 Efficient Market Investments Limited * Adventa
Group Limited ) Fortune Bright Group Limited£ [
%8 21,311,690,000 8% 74~ 22 5] B 173 & B Standard
Cosmos Limited B # $F & 2 2,340,000 % &< 2 &)
B3 > & ££1,314,080,000 8 & 2 T KD A ER
Standard Cosmos Limited & Starsign International
Limited °

Next Fcous Holdings Limited B # # & Starsign
International Limited 50% & & > A It Starsign
International Limited 35 /5 #& & =2 1,314,030,000 i
7R B BR AP AT ER i Next Fcous Holdings Limited ©

Carlyle Asia Partners lll, L.P. & CA North Beach
Limited 2 M — IR 3R » T 7% 2 B & CA NB Limited
2 M — IR B o CA NB Limited B $% # /& Starsign
International Limited 50% # % - & Lt Starsign
International Limited ¥ & # #& 2 1,314,030,000
& 2 x B BR 19 7] 58 7 CA NB Limited » CA North
Beach Limited & Carlyle Asia Partners ll, L.P. ©

BT AR (ZR) BR 2D 8 AMartin Currie Ltd Z
M —RRER > ™% 2D 7 AMartin Currie Inc R ST 7
FEEEEERDTZHE— KRR ° Martin Currie
ncRETHUMNBREEEERATAINEERSE
ZX A | 130,491,000 (#96.52% ) § 94,805,000 (49
4.73%) BB o EtkMartin Currie IncR & T A1 Fl
REEEEMR D FFHE 2225,296,0008 B RER
3 (#911.25%) A EF M Martin Currie Ltd & B T A&
(ER)ERATF ©

NEBENESEN R-ZZZAF+ZA

=t—H > AORABENENRADFACBHTR
FZEAEMEREEERAA -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

(i) On 3 November 2008, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered
into between Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited B X%
R R ER A 8 (formerly Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company
Limited B A= AL IR 2 EBR A7) (‘NB Taiwan”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAI as landlord
for a period of two years from 1 November 2008 to 31 October 2010
with a monthly rental of TWD2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$521,304); (b) the Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into
between NB Taiwan as tenant and Dr. SU Chien Cheng as landlord
for a period of two years from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2010
with a monthly rental of TWD70,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$16,218); (c) the Beijing Tenancy Agreement 1 was entered into
between Beijing Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited 1t 22 B #&
E1iRBARA T (“Beiing NB”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as tenant and Beijing Zhong Ao Yi Natural Beauty
Cosmetics & Hair-Style Training Company Limited 1t 3 AR B§ AR E
EREERMIEINERAD T (“Beiing ZAY”) as landlord for a period of
two years from 1 December 2008 to 30 November 2010 with a monthly
rental of RMB230,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$259,711); and
(d) Beijing Tenancy Agreement 2 was entered into between Shanghai
Natural Beauty Sanlian Cosmetics Company Limited (“NB Sanlian”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Beijing
ZAY as landlord for a period of two years from 1 December 2008 to
30 November 2010 with a monthly rental of RMB60,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$67,751). Beijing ZAY is a company beneficially-
owned by Dr. TSAI, Dr. SU Chien Cheng and Dr. SU Sh Hsyu as to
20%, 40% and 40% respectively. Details of these tenancies were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2008.

(i) On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October 2009
Dr. TSAI, Dr. SU Chien Cheng and Dr. SU Sh Hsyu (collectively the
“Licensors”) and the Company (the “Licensee”) entered into a license
agreement and subsequent amendments at a consideration of HK$10
for the royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence
and privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks on
exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

@iy  On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company (the
“Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI (the “Licensee”) entered into a license
agreement and subsequent amendments at a consideration of HK$10
for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and perpetual licence (including the
right to grant sub-licences) to use certain trademarks solely in relation
to the operation of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes
and in the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which such
trademarks are registered or has been applied for. The Licensee
shall offer the Company the opportunity to participate in any new
investments.

(iv)  On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Dr. SU Chien Cheng, Dr. SU Sh
Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio Ling as the assignors
and the Company as the assignee entered into a trade mark assignment
pursuant to which the assignors assigned certain trade marks to the
assignee for a consideration of HK$10.

(v)  On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen Yu as the licensor and the Company
as the licensee entered into a licence agreement pursuant to which the
licensor granted to the licensee a non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-
up, perpetual and irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world
to use certain licensed trade marks only in respect of the businesses
conducted by the licensee for a consideration of HK$10.

The above transactions are regarded as connected transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the transactions are disclosed
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third
parties and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year; and

(i)  there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the board
of directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the
board of directors, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

INSUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited, on behalf of Standard Cosmos
Limited, made a mandatory unconditional cash offer (“Offer”) to acquire all the
issued shares in the share capital of the Company (other than those already
owned by Standard Cosmos Limited and parties acting in concert with it),
the details of which are set out the Company’s announcement dated 23
November 2009 and the composite document in relation to the Offer jointly
issued by the Company and the offeror, namely Standard Cosmos Limited
on 23 November 2009 (“Composite Document”). Upon closing of the Offer,
462,774,932 shares of the Company, representing approximately 23.11% of
the total issued share capital of the Company, are held by the public. Prior

to the Offer, the percentage of the shares of the Company held by the public
was 23.00%. Accordingly, the Company has insufficient public float and does
not meet the requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Composite Document, to the extent that there is insufficient
public float for the Company as a result of the Offer and Standard Cosmos
Limited is unable to or does not exercise any right it may have under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands to compulsorily acquire those shares
of the Company not acquired by Standard Cosmos Limited pursuant to

the Offer, the directors of Standard Cosmos Limited and the new directors
who were appointed to the Company on 24 November 2009 will jointly and
severally undertake to the Exchange to take appropriate steps to ensure that
sufficient public float exists in the shares of the Company.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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INSUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT (continued)

The Company is exploring various approaches to fulfil the public float
requirement.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Tsai Yen Yu
Chairman

Hong Kong

25 March 2010
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Independent Auditor’ s Report
B IZE MR ES

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 142, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement

of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as

a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit

in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A Sk
:%/T = = E l‘l& m
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-SRNF+-AS+-ALEFE

Notes
FiaE

Revenue 'ON 5
Cost of sales SHERA
Gross profit EF
Other income Hithlhzs 7
Distribution and selling expenses PHERIEEER
Administrative expenses THX
Other expenses Hi%H
Profit before taxation RR%E BE A
Income tax expense FreBipx 8
Profit for the year RE R 9
Other comprehensive income: Hith2mEUkE

Exchange differences arising BEEENERES

on translation

Total comprehensive income AEE2HEKEETE

for the year
Profit for the year attributable to: DT ATEEARFEEREF

Owners of the Company RABEEB A

Minority interests DERRER
Total comprehensive income DT ATEGEEKEEE !

attributable to:

Owners of the Company PN/NETE 2SN

Minority interests DER R
Earnings per share gRER 12

Basic and diluted BEAREE

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009

2009 2008
—EZAF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT T8
538,092 592,701
(122,913) (86,102)
415,179 506,599
20,772 58,222
(120,299) (127,587)
(109,093) (112,731)
(19,806) (16,026)
186,753 308,477
(42,830) (69,898)
143,923 238,579
2,559 836
146,482 239,415
149,636 238,477
(5,713) 102
143,923 238,579
152,169 238,996
(5,687) 419
146,482 239,415
HK7.5 centsi&1l HK11.9 centsiE{l




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

tra B IS AR R R 3R

At 31 December 2009
R-EENF+=ZA=+—H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid lease payments
Pledged bank deposit
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred income
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Retirement benefit obligations

FRBEE

REME

TEE BEkRE
BATHEER
e

AHHERE
EERIREE

3
B 5 R 2R
B A+ I
BAE RIRIT IR
RITBERRS

nREEE

B2 R HEMEAIRK
IR
FE{S 3R

RBEEFE

REERABAR

FRBEE

RKBRNEE

Notes

Byt

14
15
16
17
18
27

19
20
16
21
21

22
23

24

2009 2008

S —BBNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET
4,710 4,486
217,760 230,569
9,562 9,809
25,833 25,766
3,926 5,926
3,016 9,156
264,807 285,712
89,076 100,859
85,382 92,744
278 278
430 428
559,346 546,205
734,512 740,514
93,836 105,979
10,290 10,374
14,490 41,207
118,616 157,560
615,896 582,954
880,703 868,666
11,875 12,259
868,828 856,407
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R B AR R ARk

At 31 December 2009

REZZFZAF+Z=A=1T—H

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Minority interests

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 142 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2010 and are

signed on its behalf by:

RS K (&

[RES
it

ROTER AR

\\

D

B

o7

R

[

Dr. Tsai Yen Yu
EREEL
Director

EZE
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R

Notes 2009
g —EEhEF
HK$’000

FET

25 200,210
667,872

868,082
746

868,828

EAREE

Ms. Ng Shieu Yeing Christina
REEZLL
Director

EZ

2008
—FENF
HK$'000
FiB

200,064

649,896

849,960
6,447

856,407

EOEINRENRENBEREN_-_ZE—ZF=A
“+REEESSHEYIRETE  YAUTE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-EZAF+ZAZ=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE AR
Share
Share  Capital Share  Statutory Translation option  Retained Minority
capital  surplus premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
A DY

Bx AFE% ROEE AThF ERRE 0 RBE REER A% BRREE 4
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TEr TEn TEr TEx TEx TER Tz TEx TEn TEn

At 1 January 2008 RZEBNF-A—H 200000 42554 336,758 150,722 63,208 101 116,288 909,626 6,025 915,651
Exchange differences arising BEEENERER
from translation - - - - 519 - - 519 317 836
Profit for the year KEERA - - - - - - 238477 238477 102 238579
Total comprehensive income TEERHNGAR
for the year - - - - 519 - 238477  23399% 419 239,415
Transfers & - - - (2379 - - 2376 - - -
Contrioution from minority shareholders  PBREFE - - - - - - - - 377 377
Acqisition of additional interest in WE-FHELF
a subsidiary BoMER - - - - - - - - (374) (374)
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ #SED k2 RF
(note 13) (MzE13) - - (300,082) - - - - (300,032 - (300,032)
Recognition of share based payments 2R - - - - - 840 - 840 - 840
Forfeiture of share options R R E - - - - - (595) - (595) - (595)
Shares issued Upon exercise of TEARERRITRG
share options 64 - 1,298 - - (237) - 1,125 - 1,125
At 31 December 2008 R-Z2BNE
+ZR=1+-H 200,064 42,554 38,024 148346 63,722 109 357,141 849,960 6,447 856,407
Exchange differences arising from BEEENERER
translation - - - - 2,533 - - 2,533 26 2,559
Profit for the year KEERF - - - - - - 149636 149636 (5713 143923
Total comprehensive income KEE2ANGAE
for the year - - - - 2,533 - 149636 152,169 (5,687) 146,482
Transfers 25 - - - 3511 - - 3511 - - -
Dividend paid to minority interests B ERR
FERRA - - - - - - - - (14) (14)
Dividends recognised as distribution ~~ #ESER k2 KA
(note 13) (HFE13) - - - - - - (137,076) (137,076) - (137,076)
Recognition of share based payments B A - - - - - 541 - 541 - 541
Cancellation of share options TETRE - - - - - (25) - (25) - (25)
Shares issued Upon exercise of TERRERRTRG
share options 146 - 2,992 - - (625) - 2,513 - 2,513
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
+ZA=1+-H 200210 42,554 41,016 151,857 66,255 - 366,190 868,082 746 868,828

BRAXENBBRERLE —TTAFFH 69
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZTNFT-A=T-HLEE

SHARE PREMIUM

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed.

STATUTORY RESERVE

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC accounting regulations (the “net profit under PRC generally accepted
accounting principles” (“PRC GAAP”)), to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves shall be made in
accordance with the Article of Association and approved by the board of
directors each year. Other PRC companies are required to transfer a certain
percentage of their net profit under PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

CAPITAL SURPLUS

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon Group Reorganisation in year 2002.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes

other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as
cash dividends.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-_r\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BEZEENF+ZRA=1T—HLEE

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Gain of held-for-trading investments
Increase in fair value of investment
properties
Allowance for (write back of)
obsolete inventories
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments
Share based payments

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables

Decrease in held-for-trading investments

(Decrease) increase in trade and
other payables
(Decrease) increase in deferred income

(Decrease) increase in defined
benefit obligations

Cash generated from operations
Overseas tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

e
BR#: A R
RRAETHIRE !

2

THE - BERERBITE

HETHE - BEK
REW

‘e AR L EEN

RHEEEREWS

REMELFEEMN

REFERFEEE)

25 RUSRNRERE
AtHERERERE

[ESIRNE

EEESEBAIZ
KEPERE
FEEM

E 5 R H BRI
WA (3Eh0)
HEEBERERD
E 5 RHMEMNIRR
CRLA») 381N
EFEU E OR300
EREEFEE
OGR4 ) & hn

REXBEEZRS
EAEIMRIR

RETFBREREF

2009
—EENF
HK$°000
T8

186,753

(2,359)

21,589

(594)
278

(137)

14,948
624

2,000
516

223,618
(3,165)

6,738

(9,630)
(84)

(384)

217,093

(63,002)

154,091

2008

—2ENF

HK$’000
FET
308,477
(6,583)
17,131
(14,699)
275
(2,617)

(15)

(1,495)
15,243

3,200
245

319,162
(27,010)

(8,032)
2,617

16,530
611

360

304,238

(34,950)

269,288
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE—ZTAFT-A=1T—HILFE

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Increase in pledged bank deposit
Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary

Net cash used in investing
activities

Financing Activities

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to minority interests
Contribution from minority shareholders

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the financial year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the financial year,
represented by bank balances and cash

Note
MiaE

REZE

BETHE - BRSERE
HETHE - BEkERE
FRSRIA

WIS

WEE—RHE L E 28
SR FIRITERRIE 0

Wi —XME D REEIMER
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BMEERE

TRAS AR

SR BIR RAE R IRF
DEREEE
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ReZEW
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REZEY
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2009
—EENF
HK$°000
T8

(17,058)

10,494
2,359

(4,205)
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001

as an exempted company with limited liability. Its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
28 March 2002. Its ultimate parent and immediate parent are Starsign
International Limited and Standard Cosmos Limited, respectively, and
both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the introduction to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

—REHR
AARRZBE-FARNAZTHIBEEHESH
%?Hﬁﬁii%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ  HEROR=
—HE=ZA=+NAEEE ﬁé?&%ﬁﬁ
ﬁm“ﬂﬂﬁxﬁﬁtm*ﬂﬁ%ﬁ
AREEFEZERAGRDAIANRKBHEBERES
& M X 3L =z Starsign International Limited &
Standard Cosmos Limited o 482 &) 2 5
ERERFTEEEMB I HIAFRES TIH

E*‘éo

RARBREERDT - AREEEXKSD
QRERHEEE  XBARBTEEMKRORE

HUNEEE - ZERNKERBE AR Y EEE
BERRHEREREI - HMBLAR 2 EEE

BEN RS IS MARMFLSS ©

REVBRRUF DT ZHEERE
Bl

BAZREYREBRLAE —ZEAFER

73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZENF+-A=1t—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC) - Int 13

HK(FRIC) - Int 15

HK(FRIC) - Int 16

HK(FRIC) — Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liguidation
Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2008, except for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 July
2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation to the amendment
to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Except the new and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and
disclosure as described below, the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs has had no material effect on the financial statements of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial

Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes (including

revised titles for the financial statements) and changes in the format and

content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see note 6).

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HK(FRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) — Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’

Classification of Rights Issues*

Eligible Hedged ltems!

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters®

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®
Business Combinations'’

Financial Instruments’
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments®
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment
for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets and will be effective
from 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to

be measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that (i) are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows and (i) have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at fair value. The
application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other

new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Business combinations
The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured
at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the acquisition date is before 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions of net

assets and operations of another entity, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see
the accounting policy below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business

at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwiill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Service income is recognised when services are provided. Payments
that are related to service not yet rendered are deferred and shown as
deferred income in consolidated statement of financial position.

Entrustment fees arising from arrangements for third party operators
to operate the same business as the Group are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in equal instalments
over the entrustment periods.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than freehold land and construction in progress) are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment (other than freehold land and construction in progress)
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in

the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are charged as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless

the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating leases and
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. It is recognised
as revenue over the periods necessary to match them with the costs

for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the
Labour Standards Law (as amendment) in Taiwan and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) municipal government retirement scheme,
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Retirement benefits costs (Continued)
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of the reporting period.
Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the greater of the
present value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations and the fair
value of plan assets at the end of the previous reporting period are
amortised over the expected average remaining working lives of the
participating employees. Past service cost is recognised immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
amended benefits become vested.

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised
past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any
asset resulting from this calculation is limited to unrecognised actuarial
losses and past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds
and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that

are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or

the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZENF+-A=1t—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset
is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets
acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid

or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposit and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end

of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
° default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZENF+-A=1t—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHE®

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and

other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount

of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZENF+-A=1+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities representing trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred

and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise

the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Share based payment transactions
Equity-settled share based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees
The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible assets (other than
goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent to the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of trade receivables

is approximately HK$59,400,000 (2008: HK$65,302,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately HK$2,688,000 (2008:
HK$2,963,000).

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i)
goods sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of
sales returns and allowances, (i) service income from provision of skin
treatments, beauty and SPA services and (i) entrustment fee income for
the year, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods EmiEE
Service income BRAEU A
Entrustment fee income ZitRE =
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BEXRRBREHT - HRFEEERAER
HRBEEARE Z2BARAREBZBMRRNE
EHBEER AT TRERZEEZRE -
AT XY e

B S EWERR Z LEHRE
BEHEBEBR2EHRER  FAEEEE
BT ARRBERE - BEFEBRENRE
EROEHEEESREERERAE (DAL
BRETEZERTER)INE 25t RRE
ERERB(TEREMRAEELEZRREES
B)ZEZHETE - ERARBELSREMER
RIEH  THESELEBEAREERRE - R=
ZZNF+ZA=+—8  BHEWERZ
BREE 4 559,400,0008 T (ZEENF :
65,302,000 5t) * EFEHBRREREN
2,688,000/ L (ZFZ )\ F : 2,963,0008
TT) °

WA
BAEAFEAKE(ETIREFERZ
Bk FEWCFEE - THIREERERITHNE
BIRR 5 (i)PREREMNE#EE - RERKER
BZRBWA ; R EELE RS - 20
T

2009 2008
—EBAEF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
525,945 575,491
11,949 16,693

198 517
538,092 592,701
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with effect
from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, the Chief Executive Officer, for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing their performance.
In contrast, the predecessor Standard, HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”
required an entity to identify two sets of segments (business and
geographical) using a risks and returns approach.

In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format was geographical
segments by location of customers. The application of HKFRS 8 has
not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments

as compared with the primary reportable segments determined in
accordance with HKAS 14. Nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed
the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss.

Segment revenues and results
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, Taiwan and Others
(Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau).

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment
based on customers’ location is presented below:

2 EBE R
AEER-2TNF-A-HEBRATEY
BIELRERR EE LA | - HBUKR
HEBFESHEA —WELER  AERTRE
BREANGTHAB) RO HMERDBER KRR
ML ERER AR ASEARE D 2 AERER
HOREEED MEZERFBETE
BIE145R] 0 ab 87 & IR E B8R AR Ba e B 3R
F e B R IBEMA D EB o

B - AEREIZREF P S 2 ithiE 2 JE
HEZERE - BERBETBETTERE 1455
BECERAHRED M BAETBHBERS
ERESRYBEFEHB D AEBARE
DEP o AT BB RELAESHRITRE
BB REREZEEERE -

DEBAREE
REBZEBRVRPEAE - 8 ERHEM
(B8~ BRAEREM) o

REBRAREERERT FAEMETHRE
DEREHFMT ¢

PRC Taiwan Others Total

R Bl K pE =) ] Hith st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET

For the year ended BE-_ZTNEF
31 December 2009 +=A=+—8H
IEFE

Revenue ON 395,574 132,299 10,219 538,092
Segment profit (loss) DEREF(ER) 192,019 15,912 (6,722) 201,209
Unallocated corporate expenses KRB AR X H (18,515)
Unallocated income REBEUE 4,059
Profit before taxation BRF AT SR 186,753
Income tax expense FriSFipX (42,830)
Profit for the year REERF 143,923
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-—FBRET-A=+-ALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2008

Revenue

Segment profit (loss)

Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated income

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

BE-ZENF
t=A=t+—H
ILFE

L'ON

2 EEF (E12)

AEBE AR
BRI

BRBEADEF
FRS®IR

AN ERA

2 EE B @)

DERARFEE (E)

PRC Taiwan Others Total
eI NS =) HAth st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET
436,516 146,782 9,403 592,701
255,201 74,907 (10,542) 319,566

(30,982)

19,893
308,477

(69,898)
238,579

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs and directors’ salaries. This

is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Unallocated income mainly includes interest income and exchange

difference.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

2009 —EENF
Amounts included in the measure of 2 EBEFSE R A
segment profit or loss: THIFREE
Depreciation of property, plant TEE  BEK
and equipment BBITE
Release of prepaid lease payments BoBEALEER

(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

HETHE - M5k
R () B8

Allowance for obsolete inventories REFERE
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 FEWBRTR
HEEE

Increase in fair value of investment BREMENTFEEM
properties

2008 —EEN\F

Amounts included in the measure of &5 E*UZ&EEE‘U\
segment profit or loss: THIFREE

Depreciation of property, plant and THE BERZERE
equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments BoaALiEER

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

HEFBE - Sk
RBEE (W)

(Write back of) allowance for REFE (BE)BE
obsolete inventories

Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 EUWERFUREEE

Increase in fair value of investment REMENTFEEM

properties

ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ>

HihnMER
PRC Taiwan Others Total
LN =) Hitr wst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTEx FTEx FTEx
13,820 5,577 2,192 21,589
278 - - 278
(598) - 4 (594)
10,038 4,064 846 14,948
- 624 - 624
- (137) - (137)
PRC Taiwan Others Total
B AR =) Hity Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TiExT TEx TExT TET
10,321 4,702 2,108 17,131
275 - - 275
3,100 (17,953) 154 (14,699)
(1,501) 82) 88 (1,495)
13,963 1,280 - 15,243
- (15) - (15)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Entity-wide disclosures

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of
skin care, beauty and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision
of skin treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting
and beauty training. The analysis of the Group’s revenue by principal
products and services for the year are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2009, substantially all of the Group’s
revenue and non-current assets are located in the places of domicile of
the relevant group entities, namely the PRC and Taiwan.

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2009.

7. OTHER INCOME 7.

Interest on bank deposits RITERFE

Rental income from investment REREME 2B RS
properties

Rental income from other properties REEMMERRE ARG
and equipment

Financial refunds (note) IR (MiEE)

Increase in fair value of investment BEYENFEEM
properties

Foreign exchange gain B 5 Uk 2%

Gain on held-for-trading investments BEEEREZ WG

Gain on disposal of property, HETHE - MERZRERRE
plant and equipment

Write back of obsolete inventories PREFERE

Other service income HAbARFS U A

Others Hith
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D EBE R @)

ERGAHE
FEBETEREQRERLEES 5K
EEERROEMNSEES « EERAER
LR LS IR RS R R £ AR o A
B R IR T 2 S U A BB
550

RZZBENR-ZEZEAF+ZA=+—H
REBBAFDWARFERBEESDURE
BEEESEIMR I > BREREE -

ZISEIZ%}EE HEM WEB-FFM4
AEEEBE_ZZ)/\KRZZEZNF+TZA
:+—E¢%¢EH&)\E1@10%

Hib =
2009 2008
—mEAE —BEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fitti T
2,359 6,583
214 180
5,818 4,745
7,490 2,170
137 15
544 25,371
- 2,617
594 14,699
- 1,495
2,090 -
1,526 347
20,772 58,222
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7. OTHER INCOME (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces
in which certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries
will receive financial refunds in the form of government grants by way
of negotiation with the relevant finance bureau with reference to the
percentage of income and other taxes paid. These financial refunds are
treated as tax exempted by such finance bureaus. However, the refunds
and the tax exemption treatment thereof are subject to review annually. It is
therefore uncertain if these subsidiaries will continue to be eligible for such
financial refunds and the tax exemption treatment thereof in the future.

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises:
Taxation in PRC
Current year
Overprovision in prior years
Dividend withholding tax

Taxation in Taiwan
Current year
(Over)underprovision in prior years
Dividend withholding tax

Deferred taxation (note 27)

B
REPBZHE
REE
BEFEBIARE
PR FITE IR

REEZBIE
REE
BEFE(BREBEBETE
BRI FEHI B

IESERIR (MFEE27)

H b )
Mizk . REBPBEKRESE THBARKEFRETE R

Z A ERPI PR R AN E BB - AR B KR Y
BARBSREREMBEMAERE 22
BERAMCSARREEETD L - BBR
FREpn XN EEHBRN - ZZUHRMR
WEEZSHRBPIMEL 2 BRRRE
B A ARRARVBRRRTBAS
FEH - Bt TREBREZEMBEARA
BEBESEREZRZEUBRARBE
BRiEa -

FrigBipax

2009 2008
—EEAE —BENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T8
27,008 27,889
(2,562) (3,703)
75 24,510
24,521 48,696
6,741 9,778
(53) 5,240
5,076 7,750
11,764 22,768
6,545 (1,566)
42,830 69,898
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8.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are exempted from PRC income tax for
two years starting from their first profit-making year, followed by a 50%
reduction for the next three years (the “Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday
continued on the implementation of the current EIT Law using the tax
rate of 25%.

Taiwan Income Tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable
profit of the Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries for both years. Pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations in Taiwan, certain of the Group’s Taiwan
subsidiaries are eligible to certain tax concessions.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from

17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009.
Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Company
and its subsidiaries have no assessable profit for both years.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009
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8.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at domestic rates applicable to
profits of taxable entities in the
countries concerned

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of tax concession provided
to a Taiwan subsidiary

Tax effect of tax exemption and
concession granted to certain PRC
subsidiaries under the Tax Holiday

(Over)underprovision in prior years

Dividend withholding tax

Deferred tax liabilities arising on
undistributed profits of
PRC subsidiaries

Tax charge for the year

BB AT SR

PERGERNEERERER -
BEWRETE

TAHB S H 2R B &
BARBWE 2 BB E
REARBB R RBE

BT -REENBLRABRBERER

ZRBEE
ET&ETHEKRERBAR

REERRREREEHR R
2RISR

BEFE(EERB)BETR

PRFIFEHIB

P EI B 2 B2 R DTS T
MEL ZEERBRERE

REEHEXN

Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction

have been aggregated and presented.

TR X @
AEERIES HESA 2 E RS RRE
BRI T

2009
—EBAF
HK$°000
FHET

186,753

32,517

12,738

(7,608)
17,192

(21,968)
(2,615)
5,151

7,423

42,830

FIEE -

2008
—2BNF
HK$'000
FBT

308,477

89,154

11,264

(7,325)
10,578

(7,859)

(60,803)
1,537
32,260

1,092

69,898

HRARERZEREHRE R A EELE
#% U EENRBEEEEE R
e 2B HIRE S L2 -
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9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. AEERR
2009 2008
—EThE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived REERBREHBR(GTA)
at after charging (crediting): THIBEEYIER :
Staff costs: BT
— directors’ emoluments (note 10) —EEMS (FHFE10) 2,948 14,325
— other staff costs —HiE T AR 95,574 86,684
98522 _ 101,009
Retirement benefits scheme EBAREAEERS . TEEES
contributions, excluding directors:
— defined contribution plans — EEAMLRRET B (FFE24(0))
(note 24 (b)) 11,980 9,509
— defined benefit plan — EEREFIF 8 (EE24(a))
(note 24 (a)) 599 866
12,579 10,375
Share based payments BT
Equity-settled share based payments RS EERGBIR 516 245
Total staff costs B IR A4%E 111,617 . 111e29
Depreciation of property, TEHE - BMSRRENE
plant and equipment 21,589 17,131
Release of prepaid lease payments BogALihAER 278 275
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET & 3,677 3,435
Gain on disposal of property, HEREE - BZRZEWRE
plant and equipment (594) (14,699)
Research and development costs 8RR AR 2,471 1,714
Allowance for (write back of) BREFERME (EE)
obsolete inventories 14,948 (1,495)
Cost of inventories recognised ERRARIZBEERK
as an expense 107,965 86,102
Net exchange gain & 5 U FER (544) (25,371)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S EVERFRERE 624 15,243
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At ERERERE
investments 2,000 3,200
Write off of trade receivables & 5 BRI 2,675 -
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEM <
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2008: seven) ENFRENT—R(ZEENE . £R)ESE
directors were as follows: ZEEMT
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE—SZhE+-A=+—HILEE

Mr. Mr.  Ms.Ng Ms.
Dr. Su Gregory  Patrick  Shieu Feng Mrs. Chen

Dr.Tsai Mr.Lee  Chien  Dr.Su Michael Thomas  Yeing  Janine Mr.Yeh  Shich Mr.Chen Total
YenYu MingTa  Cheng ShHsyu  Zeluck Siewert Christina Junguan Liang Fei ShuChen  Ching 2009

Gregory  Patrick

Michael ~ Thomas
BRT  ZWE  HEY  BRE  Zeuck Sewet RF%  BEr  ERE RANY 0 HF 43
fit pin:3 fit fit b3 b3 T e pi:3 Tt £t ZBENF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tén TEr TEn TEx TEn TEx THEr TER  TEr TER  TEr TR

Fees e 1,000 700 600 600 - - - - 2 20 48 2,988
Other emoluments Atie
Selaries and other benefits ~ FEREAEA 15 338 6 677 - - - - - - - 146
Contrioutions to retiement  BMERIFEIEF
benefits scheme - 6 5 3 - - - - - - - 14
Discretionary and HERKEHY
performance related HEHE
incentive payments (H3E)
(note) - - - - - - - - - - - -
Walver of fees &R (500) (700) (300) (300) - - - - - - - (1,800
Total emoluments HemE 55 34 10 980 - - - - 2 2 8 2948
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE—ZZ)\F+-A=1T—HLEFE
Mrs. Chen
Dr. Tsai Mr. Lee Dr. Su Dr. Su Mr. Yeh Shieh  Mr. Chen Total
Yen Yu Ming Ta Chien Cheng Sh Hsyu Liang Fei  Shu Chen Ching 2008

EIBT ZRENLE HFEREET HRTELT ERERNL RENY:  ERRE CEENE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$'000
TR TER TER FER TER TER FER TER

Fees B 1,000 700 600 600 20 20 48 2,988
Other emoluments Hiihe
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 15 340 305 664 - - - 1,324
Contributions to retirement BREFIF BN
benefits scheme - 6 5 2 - - - 13
Discretionary and performance  ByiE R &R
related incentive payments BEtE
(note) (BizE) 4,000 - 3,000 3,000 - - - 10,000
Total emoluments [t 5,015 1,046 3,910 4,266 20 20 48 14,325
Note: Executive directors and non-executive directors are entitled to a Mz . REBEFMEESCERE  FTESKEY
management bonus aggregately not exceed 15% of the audited TESARUDAETEBBEAARERGA
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of BAEEEBRYRFEREEERGEEE
that financial year of the Group, as recommended by the Remuneration 5%z ERIEAL -
Committee.
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

11

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009

For the year ended 31 December 2009, Mr. Lee Ming Ta had waived
his director fee for the year and Dr. Tsai Yen Yu, Dr. Su Chien Cheng
and Dr. Su Sh Hsyu had waived half of the director fees for the year of
approximately HK$1.8 million. No directors waived any emoluments in
the year ended 31 December 2008.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009.

.EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one of
them (2008: three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The emoluments of the
four (2008: two) individuals were as follows:

FERAMER
RRBRIET BT

Salaries and other benefits

Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme

Share based payments expense

Discretionary and performance
related incentive payments

BRAD 3 7R
BN RIRE R E T &

The emoluments of the four (2008: two) within the following bands:

HK$0 — HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

Z# 7T E1,000,000% T

10. EEM € @)

11

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000

1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7t 22,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7T £2,500,000% 7T
2,500,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T

BE-2ZNFT-A=+t-HLEFE - F
RELLRRHRUIBE2ESHE - T
HEEL  HERBIRESEELRAK
BWEAFE - FEEHEE41,800,000/8
ToBEZEEN\F+ZA=+-BLF
E - BEESHETAMNE -

RBE-FT/\FR=-FFAF+=A
ZT-RALFE  AEEMEEEE XM
& ERMBREERHHE 2 HM R
T o

EEME

AEBRERESFMALTEF—F(ZEZ
NE: ZR)AXQAEE  BEZHMEH
BERLEXHMEFIORE - B THA(ZES
NE  WMB)ATZEESWT :

2009 2008
—BTAF —2EN\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiEx FET
5,776 3919

33 31

- 61

- 372

5,809 4,383

ME(ZEZENF  MBA)BRSHMA L ZMH
ENFUTEE :

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Headcount Headcount
AE AE

3 —

- 1

1 —

- 1
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the profit attributable

to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$149,636,000
(2008: HK$238,477,000) and on the weighted average number of
2,001,188,775 (2008: 2,000,310,980) ordinary shares of the Company
in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not take into
accounts the outstanding share options because the exercise price of
those options was higher than the average market price of shares for
both 2008 and 2009.

13.DIVIDENDS 183.
Dividends recognised as FRABRADIRZIEF
distribution during the year:
Interim dividend, paid IR HIR A — 8 R0.03578 T
— HK$0.035 per share —EENF  §0.050%T)
(2008: HK$0.050 per share)
Final dividend, paid IR RBRF - =FFNF
— HK$0.0335 per share H8R0.0335%8 T
for 2008 (2008: HK$0.042 (ZZBEBN\F  ZBZLHF
per share for 2007) HB%0.0425%7T)
Final special dividend, paid BT RES IR R — F B T
- Nil (2008: HK$0.058 (ZE2EN\F . ZE2+HF
per share for 2007) H1%0.058%87T)

A final dividend of HK$0.040 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: final dividend of HK$0.0335 per share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2008), amounting to HK$80,084,000
(2008: HK$67,021,000) in aggregate has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in general
meeting.

BRER
ERAREENELEEREARBERFT
RIBEAQTEE AERERI%149,636,000
B (Z2Z2F)\F © 238,477,000 &
T)RAATDEAMEFHEBITER
Bk 2001183775 R (=2 N\ &F
2,000,310,9800% )51

R-ZZNER_ZZNFE  SREER
M2t EWEA RERITEZRRE - RE
REZERAREZTEESRRONRFERNZF
HHE e

KA
2009 2008
S BN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH
70,055 100,032
67,021 84,000
- 116,000
137,076 300,032

EFEBRRBE_EEAF+-A=1+—
HiIEFEIRMARERAER0.0408 T (=
EENF  BEZZEENF+ZA=1+—
BIEFERPRFFR0.03358T) &4
80,084,000/ st (—ZEZE N\ F : 67,021,000
BT HASERERABRRAERE
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=

FAIR VALUE AFE

At 1 January 2008 R-_ZEENFE—H—H
Exchange realignment B AR

Increase in fair value recognised REERER 2 AFEE M

in profit or loss

At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENFE+=-A=+—H
Exchange realignment [ 5 AR
Increase in fair value recognised AEEER 2 AFEEM
in profit or loss
At 31 December 2009 RZBZNF+=-A=+—H
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2009 and 2008 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm and
Messrs. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, respectively, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Both
Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm and Messrs. Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited are members of the Institute of Valuers, and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at
using the direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence
of recent transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above are situated
on freehold land outside Hong Kong.
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HK$’000
FET

4,544
(73)

15

4,486
87

137

4,710

AEBZREVER-SZNER=ZTEN
F+ZA=+—B2ZAFEDD BIRERE
E R o B A E R EEGEMBE R
BEMEMBESSESKERBEETEETGE
BERARETZEEAEESE - BIE
FEELEMHESEIRBEHEET
HEERE A PR R B A {EMEE (Institute of
Valuers) 8 & » EEABER » &RATET
LR BECLME LS - FREERE
BLLELET  NESERBELHRR KA
YRR ZEETSHESE -

FEEULEHESERERIESRER
BEZMEYERES  HUAFEERXG
B W BEARIIERENE -

HifiR EY R REESE LN E BRI 2K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZZNFT+-_A=+—HLEE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. FBE ~ RS R &RE

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Motor  fixturesand Construction
land Buildings improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
FER
KAEEL BF  HENE HARESR RE  RERRG 0 HBIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR T TiEn TR T TiEn T
cost S
At 1 January 2008 R-ZENF-A-H 24,286 142,134 63,554 31,341 7,031 59,758 31,709 359,813
Exchange realignment ENHE (12) 6,722 1411 1,580 298 1411 1,888 13,208
Additions B - - 23,065 3,534 561 8,125 142 35,427
Disposals e (8,635) (3709)  (25162)  (11,633) (1,886) (9,303) - (60,328)
Acquired on acquisttion of REERBEAABEA
subsidlaries (note 28) (Ffrzko8) - - - 768 - 300 - 1,068
Transfer g - 133 - - - - (1,336) -
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE
TZA=1-H 15,639 146,483 62,868 25590 6,004 60,291 32,403 349,278
Exchange realignment EXAg 293 836 820 140 57 637 70 2,853
Additions B - - 9,615 2,365 648 4,237 193 17,008
Disposals e - (8,468) (2,924) (5,430) (972) (16,314) - (34,108)
Transfer Eetid - 26,184 - 3,966 - 2,847 (32,497) -
At 31 December 2009 RZZZhE
TZA=1-H 15,932 165,085 70,379 26,631 5737 51,198 169 335,081
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2008 RZBEN\E-F-H - 29,023 43576 23,359 2,371 43,459 - 141,788
Exchange realignment EXAg - 1,051 1,157 1,241 118 894 - 4,461
Provided for the year FhitE - 3,514 5,568 1,657 79 5,663 - 17,131
Eliminated on disposals R SRS - (1,192) (24,608) (9,843) (844) (8,184) - (44,671)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZBNE
TZA=1-H - 32,39 25,693 16,414 2,374 41,832 - 118,709
Exchange realignment EfAg - 261 368 70 21 511 - 1281
Provided for the year EREE - 4,254 8,310 2,351 733 5941 - 21,589
Eliminated on disposals R ERE - (1,029) 2,868) (4.912) (925) (14474) - (24,208)
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNE
+ZA=1+-H - 35,882 31,508 13,923 2,203 33,810 - 117,321
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2009 RZBENE
tZA=1-H 15,932 129,153 38,876 12,708 3,534 17,388 169 217,760
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENE
TZA=1-H 15,639 114,087 37,175 9,176 3,630 18,459 32,403 230,569
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-FTAF+=-A=1T-ALFE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The carrying values of freehold land and buildings shown above are

situated on:

In the PRC under medium-term FA AR EIAR #5 A B £ tth {5 R A
land use rights BEz L

Freehold land in Taiwan REEFEZKAEELT

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings 40 - 55 years

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period of
the lease and estimated useful life
of 3to 10 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 3-5years

Furniture, fixtures and 2 —15years

equipment

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009

15. 7B = ~ BERRE@m

ERk A ERE L REFIREBMR AT
& :

2009 2008

S —sENE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FiExT
116,533 101,161
5w 28,665
145,085 129,726

BRERIRN  ERAHE  HERRAER
BERAESEEUT FRITE -

KAFKREL i3

BF 40—55%

HEUR FepAEFHR AT
FEREHIE10FE 2
BEE

5 R es 5—10%F

JRE 3—5F

RE S EBRK 2—15%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-—FBAET-A=+-ALFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

17.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments
comprise leasehold land rights in the

16. AL HERK

REEzBATHEERERE
RAE L R E it S E

2009
—EENF
HK$’000
THET

9,840

9,562
278

9,840

PRC under medium-term KA ERE L hfF AR
land use rights
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERMARSNAOT ¢
Non-current asset FRBEE
Current asset TREBEE
GOODWILL 17. 8
cosT Bz
At 1 January 2008 RZEENE—-HF—H
Exchange realignment & 5%
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENF+=RA=+—H
Exchange realignment BN AR
At 31 December 2009 R-BEBhF+=B=+—H
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 31 December 2008 and REZBENF+ZA=+—-HRK

31 December 2009

CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 December 2009

R-ZBZEAF+ZRA=1t—H

At 31 December 2008 R-EENF+ZA=+—H

2008
=TEN\F
HK$'000
THERT

10,087

9,809
278

10,087

HK$'000
FET

27,754

1,204

28,958
67

29,025

3,192

25,833

25,766
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
an individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic products in
the PRC (CGU). The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December
2009 and 2008 is allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period using a declining growth rate, and discount rate of 5%
(2008: 5%). This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate

for the relevant industry. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on
the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELETRAES » IRRA

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by private entities incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and Cayman Islands which are engaged in investment holding
and online health consultancy service, respectively. They are measured
at cost less accumulated impairment at the end of each reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair values
cannot be measured reliably.
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17.

18.

[EESC )

RAERITHS  SEESEETEAERE
SELEN(MHEERER) - ROBER
ER-BENE+-A=+—BHEED
EARBENRSEESE

REELBEUNTRESHEDREEREERE
HE  HHEAEIRBREEBCRENTEN
BREENRSREBRAR  UATEERER
5% (ZZBNEF | 5%)INREFE - fHER
RRBAARTREREAR - ETTBBZ
MHETRFERMERER - EAEENES
FEr R -BRIEBRREGTRERAAH
(BEEEHERRENR)EH - ARM
RESELABUCBARRREERHTS
BRAMETE -

AHEERE

A R I
2009 2008
—gThE = L
HK$°000 HK$’000
i Fin
3,926 5,926

LA EHREEREBEARFESRHAS
HEEMAL - DRIRBREZERRA L2
EREBRE 2 AABRABITIFE EMRAE
FHRE - HRZEF LT RENMEEE
DNFEREER  FAREZARTETSE
BEAYE  HUEEFLHTRENERS
HEAEE RERAHBRRREE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-_ZENF+_A=1+—HLEE

19.INVENTORIES 10. 7 &
2009 2008
—EZNF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FExT FiEx
Raw materials RRR 40,964 49,612
Finished goods B 48,112 51,247
89,076 100,859
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZ K HiEEWBRFX

2009 2008
—EEAEF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FEx
Trade receivables B S EWER 62,088 68,265
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (2,688) (2,963)
59,400 65,302
Prepayments and deposits EARERES 11,263 16,713
Other receivables HunfEURBRTR 14,719 10,729
Total trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWIRTRAEEE 85,382 92,744
The Group allows a credit period ranging from one to six months to its AEERTFHESEF—ZXBAZEE

trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables B MREHBEZERNBRRRREZE

(net of allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice FEWERFIZREA 2SI 2R DWAOT ¢

date at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved) ~ 20. B 5 & H Mt B U BR K (a0)

2009 2008

—EEhEF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FE T FET

Within 180 days 180HA 50,875 57,892
181 days to 365 days 181 H&E365H 4,670 3,828
110 2 years 1826 3,580 3,246
Over 2 years 2F Lk 275 336
59,400 65,302

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed twice a year.
86% (2008: 89%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have the best credit attributable under the system used by the
Group as at 31 December 2009.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$8,525,000 (31 December 2008:
HK$7,410,000) which are past due at 31 December 2009 for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is within 180 days (2008: within 180 days).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

181 days to 365 days 181HZE365H
1to 2 years 1828
Over 2 years 2F P E
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BIAEMHEFAN  AREERARBEES
B MhEBEEEF2FEEERREFEE
FEHE - FTFEERESFHRAMR - R=F
EAF+ZA=+t—RH REXEERAZ
FEFE > 86%(=FF/\F 1 89%)ESE
W BR SRR 2 3 ARRE

FAREECESEWRERREHRANRC-S
EhAE+ZA=+—HCAYmAERL
ERBESERECERERREES
$#8,525,0008 T (= EENF+=_A=+—
H :7,410,000/87T) - REEWEMZELE
BRIFEEMIRF - ZERBERZF1IRER
B180R (ZZFE)\F : 180H) °

BEHERRIE 2 E 5 AR 2 iR

2009 2008
—EENF —2EN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
4,670 3,828
3,580 3,246

275 336

8,525 7,410



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Since 2002, certain subsidiaries have entered into Assets Entrustment
Agreements with various operators. Pursuant to these agreements,
these subsidiaries and the operators agreed for the latter to manage and
operate the same business (the “Entrusted Assets”) as the subsidiaries,
including the provision of spa and beauty services, the sales of beauty
and skin care products, the provision of beauty training courses and

the provision of assistance by the subsidiaries to the operators in the
development of the franchise network. The appointments are effective
for period ranging from one to five years and the operators are required
to pay the subsidiaries an entrustment fee which is determined with
reference to the net asset value of the respective subsidiaries at the date
of the agreement. The operators are entitled to retain any profits and

are obligated to bear any losses, excluding the depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, arising from the operation of the Entrusted Assets
under the operators’ management and operation. The subsidiaries
retain the title to the property, plant and equipment. As security for the
operators’ obligations under the agreement, the operators are required
to place a security with the subsidiaries. The Group is not permitted to
repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the operators.

The impact of the assets entrustment agreements on the consolidated
financial statements are summarised as follows:

Entrustment fee income for the year FREELE WS

20. EZ R H Mt E W BR FX ()

B-ZZ2-FE BETHWELARRESREE
EIVEEZTEL R - REZSHE -
ZEMBLARARKEERNSREETERKE
MHEXH((ZEEEE]D  FRHNEAT
BEREKERETRE  HEXTRES
Efm > RHEFEIRERME D RS
SEMBMBLERAR CEEEWA—ZF
BF  BFEAOWBARXN-—22ER
B B A ek B I E B FHEER] 2 BT
LEA - KEERRREANEEREEH
BRKEZTEEEREENEMER XA
AEAREERELHBEIXTEEEEL
NEMEE  ETEETEE BERRE
TE - -MEBLRRETHE BMEREHEZ
BEEE - RiEZWE  KEEAQMNBELR
BRX-ERBE  UREEBTHHEETE
- EREELBENNERT  AEEF
EAEBRAEREERR -

BEZIREHBURSUBRR 2 ZEM
AT

2009 2008
—sThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FBT
198 517
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZEENF+-A=1+—HLEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the following outstanding balances
arising from the assets entrustment agreements with operators are
included as other receivables in the consolidated statement of financial

position:

Entrustment fee receivables EREFALREER

Consideration receivables for e EHEEERRNAE
sales of assets(other than plant (BB B RAERRIN)

and machinery) to the operators

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year F 4R

Impairment loss recognised on REEW IR ER 2 REEE
receivables

Amounts written off as uncollectible AR EIERFR Z EiEE £ 58

Amounts recovered during the year FREKREISEE

Balance at end of the year FHRER

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$2,688,0000 (2008:
HK$2,963,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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20. B 5 R E B EW AR a0

RBEMESEER  UTERE

ENEEZ

AREMBEE 2 RWFZHE - RESIE

ﬁkuﬁﬁﬁé DIfEE AR AR

2009
—EENE
HK$’000
B

11

682

693

RIEREE

2009
—EENF
HK$°000
FiBR

2,963
1,118

(899)
(494)

2,688

2008
—FENF
HK$'000
FBT

960

1,862

2,822

2008
—FENF
HK$’000
FiB

1,767
15,327

(14,047)
(84)

2,963

FREIREBHME R EEE B {E B 255 0 R &
2 W BRFR &£ 825 H2,688,000/8 L (=B E
N\ 2,963,000/ 7T)  AEBWEMZE

EERSHREMERR o
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BE-—FBAET-A=+-ALFE

21.

22.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposit

The pledged bank deposit is an interest-free deposit which represents
deposit pledged to bank to secure the obligation under the rental
agreement. The pledge will be released upon the termination of the
relevant rental agreement.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The amounts bear interest at market rates which ranged from 0.03% to
1.03% per annum (2008: 0.36% to 2.86% per annum).

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s bank deposits of US$32,592,000
(2008: US$22,970,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$252,750,000)
(2008: HK$178,031,000) was denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B B EFIRR
Deposits from customers NSk

Other tax payables HitnpE(SHi1E
Other payables H A FESERR

Total trade and other payables ES R HEMEMRRERE

21. EEABITERRITEFER

Be
BEMRITER

EEARITERACEF TRITESAER
BETEAZERNEEEFN - BFFER
EREEHRR LR

RTEERES
RITEERRSEEAEEFTFESRER
HA=ZEARNUARNZEHRITER - 25X
BIREFR0BEZ1.03EFE(ZEEN
F  FFR0.36EE2.86E) °

RZBEZNE+ZA=+—8B ~E£ER
TERB32592000ET(ZEE)N\F :
22,970,000% 7t ) (#8 8 R #9 252,750,000 7
7T (ZEZ)\F : 178,031,000 7t) » otk
HREEERIEEBUIICERHE -

22. B REMBEMNIRR

2009 2008
—gThE —2EN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
i Fin
12,079 14,035
22,894 25,730
8,917 9,998
49,946 56,216
93,836 105,979
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZSTNE+-A=1t—HLEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

22. B 5 R HMEN R @)
RBEHMEAE R 2B BN ERERER

23.

Within 180 days 180HA
181 days to 365 days 181HE365H
1 to 2 years 1825

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables within the credit timeframe.

DEFERRED INCOME

SiEANpE YD

Prepaid treatment fees

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognised in the
profit or loss upon provision of the services to the customers.
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HE2H 2 REDWNT -
2009 2008
= —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
10,587 13,814
1,492 199
- 22
12,079 14,035
BEEMZFEYEEHAOKX - REBCDR
MRS EREK - URRAEEMTE

BNREEERRA
23. IRIE W &=

2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
10,290 10,374
FEIEWEIEO R FHEHEEZRARBEMEBRER

F XERRESWEZE
%EEM\°

AR AF1ER

RIE > WREEFR
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BE_ZEENF+-_A=1+—HILEE

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
(a) Defined benefit plan

The Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to all employees in accordance with the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group has an
obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes at 2%
of the total salaries as determined and approved by the relevant
government authorities. Under the schemes, the employees are
entitled to retirement benefits equals to two months’ salary for
each year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary
for each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than
45 months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No
other post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme

is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2009 and 2008 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of the Taiwan
Enrolled Pension Actuary. The actuarial valuation indicates that the
Group’s obligations under this defined benefit retirement scheme
are 2% (2008: 2%) covered by the deposits paid with the Bank of
Taiwan, Ltd.

() The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

Discount rate rE=R
Expected return on plan assets 5t & & ETBHIEIH{R=R
Expected rate of salary increases JBHRE:F 4 12 hniE &

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was HK$130,000 (2008: HK$560,000).

24, RIKERFHEI
(a) TEEFIETE

rEEEENBARRESELTEE
EEE S mPREREHE > B2
BESEMER - AEEBBEERE
BERMESTI N EERESZER -
FEERIZEEABNEBEERIMES
SHREOREB MR - RIBFTE > BEE
RESEREEESFEEZEHSERW
8B &M< BIREF - #Z15E R
FEREZBEFENA—ERHEH - ¥
[E60m B E T BIB4SEA FHE o &
EEVERHEMBRBER

AEBRBRRSTEREZEHER
DR ESER BN ERIEE
BBz AZBANETSENE - BB
MNEFEUETRE  MEMTEE
E2ATEISHWIRE - BETERE
BB R AR B A R AART
o R-BENFR-ZENF+=A
=+ BZRERAEHEHEHME
Bz ERETET  HATawan
Enrolled Pension Actuaryz &8 - &
HERET  AEEREEBFRIKTE
HTEBR2%(ZBENF 1 2%) ' B
ENFEERITERAT RSB -

() FERAIEREGERROT :

2009 2008
=—EENF —2EN\F
2.25% 2.75%

2.25% 1.50%

2.50% 2.50%
BEGER R AEENER130,000

BT (ZZEE\F 1 560,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZZNFT+-_A=+—HLEE

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined
benefit plans are as follows:

Current service cost IR BF AR A% AR AR
Interest on obligations FIE LA
Expected return on plan assets st Z1& ETBEAE K=

(i)~ The amounts included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

Present value of funded ERESTEHEMNGEERE
defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets STEEELNFE

RERBEEE (W) B8

Net unrecognised actuarial
(losses) gains

Net liability arising from EHEENEEEECEETHE

defined benefit obligations
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24, RIKERIFTE (@)
(a) EEEEAIFTE (&)
NEREREEEN SRR

(i

SEENT :

2009
—EBAF
HK$°000
FHET

275
332

@)

599

(i)

2008
—2BNF
HK$'000
FBT
407

(36)

866

FEEFERBEMNGTEMELE
BEBEO ARE P HMR |

= BHMT

(1,545)

2009
—EENF
HK$°000
T8

13,550
(130)

11,875

2008
—FENF
HK$’000
FiB

12,162

(560)

657

12,259
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BE-_ZENF+_A=1+—HLEE

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(iv)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations in the current year were as follows:

At 1 January H—AB—H

Current service cost IR ARAS AR AR

Interest on obligations BEBFIE

Benefits paid 21EA

Actuarial losses (gains) BEEE(RE)

Exchange differences on BTN E5E
foreign plans

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

(v} Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows:

At 1 January H—AB—H

Contributions from the employer &3 {5k

Expected return on plan assets  sHEIEETBHIEIHE

Benefits paid 21EA

Actuarial gains BE WG

Exchange differences on EONETEIE R E5E
foreign plans

At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H

24, RIKERIFTE (@)
(a) EEEEAIFTE (&)
V) REEErEBEAEERES

BT :
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T8
12,162 13,757
275 407
332 495
(1,643) (1,095)
2,167 (1,247)
257 (155)
13,550 12,162
V) RAEAFEZFEEEATFEZT
mT
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T8
560 1,282
1,196 293
8 36
(1,643) (1,095)
10 33
(1) 11
130 560

BAZREYREBRLAE —ZEAFER
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(v)  (Continued)
The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage
of the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

Deposits with financial FFUBEHEsRe
institutions

Short term bills EHEE

Stocks edn)

Bonds &%

Others Hith

(b) Defined contribution plans

(i)  The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under
the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW
MPF Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and 6%,
respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000 for HK MPF
Scheme while there is no cap to monthly income under TW
MPF Scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.
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24, BB 2 (a0
(a) EEEEAIFTE (&)
v (&)
HEEES T EERIUESET
RNEERZATEESHNT

2009 2008
—EENF —2ENF
% %

43.55 32.27
3.58 12.90
10.50 12.11
10.80 11.69
31.57 31.03
100.0 100.0

(b) EREHRETE

() AEERBEEBEFELAEST
BB ANEBREERHIEEER
BEREEAZEER AN
SFEI((EBRESHE)D 3
RIBAELBEEL(LIBE)R
usRFEABESE( A EEE
S8 - FEBEBLHERE
ERESTTEAHBIETEAE
B ERMBIUEAREE - RIEE
BRESH AR ABEEST
2 EEXREESBEAMOTES
BEHEENMEETBRASKE
6% 2tk - BERESTEZE
BBRWA £FR%20,000/ 7T -
megaESTERrES AR
A LBR o sHEMEFRENESRRES
i o
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)

(b) Defined contribution plans (Continued)

(i)  The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are

members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised
by the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The
employees are entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and their
length of service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$12,593,000 (2008:
HK$10,388,000) represents contributions paid on payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At beginning of year and
end of year

Issued and fully paid:

At beginning of year

Shares issued upon exercise of
share options

At end of year

24, RIKERIFTE (@)
(b) EFEMHRETE (&)

(i

FEETERBAREBERTH
B EE 2B REEEMRER G
EKRE - FEMBLARCSRES
BUEBRARE - BETEEESM
EEBHERERSRE 2 EBEMHR
RKETE - BEERBEABK
&R - BIRERBAKEF ZER
FEURRBEFHREBRAKE -
TEBFREmZSRNE T
BRI E - MAKBEARSE TE
ELRRAEFEHREE 2HE - 1
ALERE TIRBE R KR B -
Br Bz FEMMM - AEEL
BEZET AR AMRKE
MNREREE -

FTABER ZHBAKARE12,593,0008 T (=
ZF)\F :10,388,000587T) » IAEER
BTSRRI EA S B2 K -

25. B2
Number of shares Share Capital
ROEE &S
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENE —EENEF —EENE
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T TR TER FET
BREME0IET
ZEBR
EIE
REDRFL
4,000,000 4,000,000 400,000 400,000
EETRAR
RELD 2,000,640 2,000,000 200,064 200,000
TR
BITRAD 1,460 640 146 64
RE#L 2,002,100 2,000,640 200,210 200,064

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFEFR
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25 SHARE CAP'TAL (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, share options had been
exercised by option holders to subscribe for a total of 1,461,502
shares of HK$0.1 each by payment of cash bonus of approximately
HK$2,513,000, of which approximately HK$146,000 were credited
to share capital and the balance of approximately HK$2,992,000 and
HK$625,000 were credited and debited to share premium and share
option reserve respectively.

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (The
“Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive or non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant.
The Scheme with remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on
11 March 2002.

Options granted may be exercised during such period as would be
determined by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and
notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in any event not
later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The subscription
price for shares under the Scheme may be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less than the higher
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option, which must be
a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant
option.

The Company may grant share options to specified participants over
and above the scheme mandate limit or the refreshed scheme mandate
limit referred to above subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meetings and the issue of a circular.
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25.

26.

&N
BE-ZEZhF+-A=+—HLEFE >
Wﬂxﬁéaﬁwﬂxﬁéhﬁ)kLUZHEE%Q%IJ
#2,513,000/8 7T 2 F RAITHE E%:.,\
1,461,5023&%@@0.15%7‘52511%

1 #9146,000/8 TE RIRAAER - ,.;.7(52’3
2,992,0007% 7t K& 625,00058 7T 2 BI R IR 2 7%
BERABEFERTT AR °

R ERTE
RERRR-ZZ-_F=A+-REBzE
HEORER » AR BAEHRA —HRREE
((REREFE ] - EERESREERES
RMURE - RERRESE - ARFT@E
RAREHMBARZZHES (BEHTE
EWFPITES) RERDRE - BEHERE
RREUNE VB TRBRYD - IRERR
RELARIRE A28 B iR - RARME
AN -EE-F=At+-HE+FHE
FHEEW -

AREARATRARDESE((EEE))
RHAREFRELANSZERANHRBT
ERRE - HEEEABRT - KEARRER
BRERMEBES TFERTHE - RER Exﬁé%‘l‘
£ %%ﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁéum"fﬁ IRERBHEE
o HEEARAT  RBETSIRUT
BRZBSE  FRHURREAN(BES
EER) ROEBXMEAREERTR
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B&EER  RORBXMEEREEMRF
HWTHE °

RATREIEESEE R BB ERER
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must not
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

At 31 December 2009, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was Nil
(81 December 2008: 1,516,533), representing 0% (2008: 0.08%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue
or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

There was no option granted to substantial shareholders, executive
directors or independent non-executive directors during both years.

6. R EFT &l )

RIBZARETEIRADTARMBEQRAEME
fET BN E BB EEFTHEZERITERR
EETERUFRITHRMEASE - FEEB
AATSHMBARDFEEBRTERERES
HI30% ° dNBEIPREE  BI RBRBEARATH
M A R AT BIIR H RARAE -

RZZBZENFE+ZA=+—8  REBEIRE
FEEREENAMKRITERREZHE
BROBEAZER(ZZEENF+_A=1+—
H :1516,5331K)  HERALATEAD#
TRBO%(ZEBEENF : 0.08%) o KEA
ATRRBERER » RIERIRFEST BT 5
RERBEZABEROEHE » FTHBHEEAL
EMEARREE ZITIRM10% o REKRQTR
REAHAERN > MEA—FEREEFR AR
BRFEAALRBREZEBRITREFRTZ
HERMEE > TEEBEAQATTMEREE
BITRM1% - BEERRRBLFEHITE
EREZEREERA LT —EAMEARE 2
RRAER HA D B 2 BITRAR0.1%RIRIEF
HEBZROWHETFEZRRELESZRN
5,000,000 7 » BELERDTRERALE ©

ARBAREFRALEOEZRE BTESH
BAUFHTESRIBEARRE -

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFER
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by employees during the years ended 31 December 2008

and 2009:
Option type Date of grant
AREEH RHBE
2007 Type! 27 July 2007
ZETLEE-E IERLE
thA=ttA
2007 Typell 27 July 2007
ZERLEECE IERLE
tAZttE
2007 Typell 27 July 2007
CEILEECE C55tE
tAZttE
2008 Type! 16 July 2008
ZEZ\FE-E IERNE
tAtrA
2008 Typell 16 July 2008
ZZRN\FECR 250
tATAR
2008 Typel 16 July 2008
ZEI)\FEZE 53%
tAtRA

Exercisable at the end of the year

FARTAR

Weighted average exercise price

NETHIRE

Vesting
period

£RE

1year

-£

2 years

AE

3years

2 years

mE

3years

3

Exercisable
period

ke
1July 2008 to

26July 2017
ER\FtA-AE

ZR-tEtACTAR
1July 2009to

26July 2017
RRNFLA-BE

ZE-tEtATTAR
1July 201010

26 July 2017
“E-RELR-BE

ZE-tELAITAR
1July 2009 to

15 July 2018
ERNFLA-AE

ZB-N\EtAtER
1y 2010to

15 July 2018
R-BEL5-0E

“E-\FtAtTER
1July 201110

15 July 2018
ZB—-Etf-BE

E-\FtAtTIR

Exercise
price

ikl
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26. IR FESTE @)
TERERESNEE-EE\FR-2T
NE+=A=t—RILFERE2AATR

Granted Exercised Forfeited Granted Exercised Cancelled
Outstanding during during during  Qutstanding during during during  Outstanding
at  yearended  yearended yearended at  yearended  yearended yearended at
112008 31122008 31122008 31122008 31122008 31422000 31422000 31422000  31.122009
# REE REE HEE it REE HEZ HEz i
ZBENF ZEENF ZE8)\F ZE50E ZEINE e k-3 ZEINE ZEENE 5.3
-f-B +ZBZt-B tZA=t-B tZB=t-B tZBEt-B TZAZt-B fIAt-B tIASt-B t2BZt-B
HATE  LEERE  LFEAE  LEERK HATE  LEERE  LEEAE  LEEEH HAGE
639430 - 639,430) - - - - - -
383,659 - - - 383,659 - (383,659) - -
25,72 - - - 25,772 - (255,772) - -
- 1,106,728 - 668,177) 433551 - (411,05) (27,516) -
- 064,037 - 400,906) 263131 - (246,622) (16,509) -
- 442,691 - (267,271) 175,420 - (164,414) (11,006) -
1,218,861 2213456 (639,430)  (1,336,354) 1516533 - (1,461,502) (55,031) -
Ni NI N
176 169 1.76 169 172 169 176 169 Ni
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group granted options
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 2,213,456 shares
and will be vested on a ratio of 50%, 30% and 20% over a three year
period subject to the grantees achieving certain performance targets.
The options were granted on 16 July 2008. The estimated fair values of
the options granted on that date were HK$984,000.

As an additional employee incentive, the Company will pay the relevant
option holder a cash bonus in the amount of the total exercise price
payable for the exercise of the options. The option holders are required
to use any such cash bonus towards payment of the exercise price of
the relevant options and a cash bonus of approximately HK$2,513,000
(2008: HK$1,125,000) had been paid and used directly for the exercise
of those options for 1,461,502 (2008: 639,430) shares issued during the
year ended 31 December 2009.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately HK$541,000
(2008: HK$840,000) and reversal of expenses of HK$25,000 (2008:
HK$595,000) for the year ended 31 December 2009 in relation to
share options granted and share options cancelled or forfeitured by the
Company respectively.

Wb‘&*g"l-ij(mﬁ
REBEZE-ZZENF+-A=+—BLEFE -
AEBEOETEEREARE  UREARA
ERETREBEEFRABERZ2,213,4568%
BB WAHER=FRNIEZR50%  30% K 20%
LLEFRE - RBRECR-ZZENFLATR
HiEE - REAFMRERREAFEMLTH
984,00058 7T °

ERBEMEERR XA ERHEER
BREFBEAZNSSEAERMITERRE
BERBATEERESELA - RREIFEA
BEAAMZSRESEALSEERREZ
TEE MREBE=EZAF+=A=1+—
BIEFE  2%4#82,513,0008T(Z2F
NE 11,125,000 t) 2B TEALI H #Z
FAEITHEE1T1,461, 502 (ZFEEN\F .
639,430BR BR D) 2 FRPHE ©

BE_ZZNF+-A=+—HLEE K
SEEERAQARE ZARERFHBEIZ Y
ZRBREER B BEEN541,0008 T (==
T \F : 840,000/ 7t ) R EIFI £ 25,0007
JTL(ZZEE)\F : 595,000/ 7T) ©

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFER
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27.

Natura

DEFERRED TAXATION 27 IEIERIIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised LTABEARBEEENRGEE MBI RBE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and movements BACITEEEHBEENREAGBURES
thereon during the current or prior years are as follows: Il
Allowance Other Undistributed
forbadand Revaluation Defined  Unrealised  short-term earnings
doubtful of benefit profitson  temporary of PRC
debts  properties liability  inventories differences entities Total
EEER KER HpEH  hEERZ
RERRE RS B FEEA EHEE  AIEEAN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TERL THL ThRL TERL ThRL Thx
At 1 January 2008 R=EEN\F-F-H (332) (854) (3,164) (3,430) 230 - (7,550)
Exchange realignment ERAE 18 4 66 (152) 24 - (40)
(Credit) charge to profitorloss ~ WAB&ER (FrA)HIk (327) 3 (362) (1814) (158) 1,092 (1,566)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+ZA=1-H (641) (847) (3,460) (6,396) % 1,092 (9,156)
Exchange realignment ERAZ (15) (4) (72) (286) (28) - (405)
(Credit) charge to profitorloss ~ REBHE (FTA) Mk (68) 34 (285) (397) (162) 7423 6,545
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
+ZA=1-H (724) (817) (3,817) (6,079) (94) 8,515 (3,016)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$175,329,000 (2008: HK$111,132,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The Hong Kong tax losses of HK$33,788,000 (2008: HK$27,958,000)
do not expire under the current tax legislation in Hong Kong and all
other tax losses will expire from 2010 to 2014 (2008: 2009 to 2013).

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries arising since 1 January

2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to be
distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits
amounting to approximately HK$150,391,000 (2008: HK$20,874,000).
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RBEHELEER  ~"EEERBARKE
E5 B 8 175,329,000 8B T (ZEZ N\ F .
111,132,000 7T) A ARAEIK S8 AR AOEF o H
RABERERREFIRE » Bt ERERE
FHEFERIAELHIEEE - RIBEFAET
Bl - HBFIEEIE33,788,000/8 T (=&
Z)\F : 27,958,000 7T) K BH - MATE
HithfEBEBEER 2 —EFZ2_F—NF
AH(ZZENFE . —EENFE-Z—=
FEHER) o

ERAEEFEARENBLARE -ZEE
NE—AB—BURMEERDIKEFZIE
ERECFELEZ2E8BE REAEERB
ZERAGTTRAERERATBEDIR &
EECREZS R EEZBEREEELDN
150,391,000 7Tt (ZZF &\ : 20,874,000
BIT) ZIEER AR o
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
For the year ended 31 December 2008

On 20 August 2008, the Group acquired 100% interest in Shanghai
Natural Beauty Bio-Med Company Limited (L8 B REL Y RER

BRA 7)) (“Bio-Med”), from Uni Way Associates Limited, a company
beneficially owned by shareholders of the Company, at a consideration
of USD3,313,966 (equivalent to approximately HK$25,848,936). Bio-
Med is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of health
supplement. This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase
method.

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:

Net assets acquired: BAEESFE:
Bank and cash balances RITRBRESET
Plant and equipment 5 Rt
Inventories FE
Trade and other receivables g 5 R H A EWRRR
Trade and other payables Z 5 R HMENSIRR
Total consideration BRE
Satisfied by: URB AT -
Cash consideration paid 2fRERE
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WBEE 2RSSR LT
Cash consideration paid 2fRERE
Bank balances and cash acquired I ARITEFERRSE

Note: The fair value of the net assets acquired approximate to their carrying
amounts on or before the date of acquisition.

28. BB — R B F

BZ2-_ZEEN\F+-A=+—HLHF
E

R-ZZEZENFNA=+H » NEBRNKE
3,313,966 JT (M 18 E 14 25,848,936 TT)
BHAQTDBRREZES 2 2 FUni Way
Associates Limited it i Ei8 B R XL EE
ERLAF(BEARAEZEYER 2 HER - B
AREEYBERERNERFEERERD - =2
1B YL BE LA BB S5 AR ©

REZARGEAZEEFENT :

Acquiree’s carrying
amount before
combination (Note)
ORISR
BRTEIE (MEE)
HK$'000

FiEx

22,726
1,068
1,337

984
(266)

25,849

25,849

(25,849)
22,726

(3,123)

MiEE - B ABERE 2 D FEEERKE
AHisk 2 ATAYERE(EAR S -

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFER
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28.ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2008, total group
revenue for the year would have been approximately HK$593,343,000,
and profit for the year would have been approximately HK$237,040,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

29. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises
under operating leases as follows:

REB S
Bk N

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rental payments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

BAREF

Over five years
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E_EELF(BREERMF)

28. WiE — M B D B @)

BE_ZENF+-A=+—HLHF

E (%)

HERBER=-ZZNF—B—HB=K ' &
B F R AU A FE# 5593,343,0008 7T
FERFELQ £H237,040,00008 T  HEE

BHEHRBARE  T—
ENF-R—HREMK

ERBREWER -2
FEBEREEZ

WAREEERE  TTERERREZZHE

e

20. K&EHLN

REBEREBEA

FR - AEERBEEANSERBLEY
EHNUTHEE

2009 2008
—2E2hEF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
27,600 18,929
7,517 5,393
35,117 24,322

RBEME FEH - AEERE R THEE
SHYARTIEHABN 2 ARHERES

AWENT -
2009 2008
—EZAEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
21,629 18,705
16,956 24,612
7,748 8,478
46,333 51,795
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29. OPERATING LEASES (continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its leased properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals
are fixed for an average term of five years. In addition, the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries have commitments to make rental payments at a
percentage of turnover for certain leased properties.

The Group as lessor

Property

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$5,623,000 (2008:
HK$4,722,000), net of outgoings of HK$409,000 (2008: HK$203,000).
All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next one to five
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

30.

Within one year —FR
In the second year to fifth year

inclusive

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

RBBTBE - BEK

Capital expenditure in respect of

acquisition of property, plant and B ZERTHERR
equipment contracted for but not REMIERREBE
provided in the consolidated ZEARFER

financial statements

E_EELF(BEERMF)

29.

KL= @)
AEBEAEREA @
CRANRENAEERE TRENESH
2% BOCREEMES R EEHEE
HISTRE o HLAh - AN SR R B A A A RGE
B TRESYLRELEREAE S LENE
%o

AEBEAEHBEA

TEE

MR X 400,008 T (ZEZEN\F ¢
203,000/87T) % - REARBZYERE U
7 55,623,000/ 7T (Z 2 Z /\F © 4,722,000
BT c FIEREZTBERCERLER
HEFHNF—FZHF -

RESHESEER  AEEEEFETNZ
BESEASARAOT

2009 2008
—EThEF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T
529 623
- 623
529 1,246

30. EAREYE
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FxT T8
1,090 349
BAREEMRBERLT —ETNEFFER
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31.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 31.

DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related
parties, some of which are also deemed to be connected parties
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. The significant transactions with these parties during the year
are as follows:

REREREALRS

FRAEEEREHEEATETEAR
5 Hh#lo AT RBE RS LR A
WRIEBEANLT - FREZZALETZE
RRZWT -

(A) Transactions A XH
()  Connected Parties () EFEAL
2009 2008
—EThE —EENE
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$’'000
ARIERE RHME FH&T FET
Companies controlled by
the substantial shareholders:
FEREEH LA
B AR Rental income 14 9
ez
BESEA AL HEEENHZEESLE  Rental income 14 5
ez
FEREEIEHS Rental income 14 5
ez
BAREHRME Rental income 14 9
ez
FREERRAERAE Rental income 14 9
ez
BRmEREMHE Rental income 14 5
ez
FEEASREYEEERLT Rental income - 235
ez
(Prior to 20 August 2008, Note a) Purchase of natural health food - 7,327
(ZZEZENFNAZ+HA - Kizka) REBEXARERR
FEBAREXERLTE Purchase of lingerie 23 15
FREEATX
Balance due to at 31 December
— trade payables 12 4
RTZA=1+—RHIE =48
- B EEFIRM
EFERPREFAE ALRBRA T Rental expenses 3,943 324
ez
Director of the Company:
ALEGEE :
Su Chien Cheng Rental expenses 197 207
EREH HexH
Tsai Yen Yu Rental expenses 6,329 1,110
BEHEE HexH
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31.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(A) Transactions (Continued)

()

(1l

Connected Parties (Continued)
Note:

@@ LEEAREEYEEERAFE has become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 20 August 2008 upon the

acquisition of the 100% interest from Uni Way Associates
Limited, a connected party to the Company, as set out in note
28.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits EEEA
Post-employment benefits ERIRER
Share based payments L EnRREN

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regarded
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

1. BEEREEEALIRZ @)

(A) RZ (&)
() BFEEAL ()
=t

@ RZEENFENAZ+HMB
XA TE ZEE AL Uni Way
Associates Limited Ui i & 2B £
wHE LEBREZEVEEE
RABRERBARDRZ2EK
BT - FEEEAME2S o

() FTEEEASZHE
ESRTEEEEAMBRERTF

PZBEmT :
2009 2008
—2EE BN
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FH
9,417 23,998
63 111
- 220
9,480 24,329

EERFBRITHAEZHMIZ
ZEBKRBARTEBEEEHH
ZEEEE -
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31.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(B) cher Arrangements

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Under a licensing agreement, a director of the Company
granted to Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited (“NB
Taiwan”), a subsidiary incorporated and operated in Taiwan,
a license to use a skin test software from 1 January 1997 to
31 December 2011 for a nominal consideration of NT$1.

On 5 October 2001, NB Taiwan entered into two separate
licensing agreements with two directors of the Company.
Under the agreements, the directors agreed to license

a number of trademarks to NB Taiwan, on an exclusive
basis, for a nominal consideration of NT$1. The licensing
agreements will be effective till the expiry of the registration of
the respective trademarks.

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October
2009 Dr. TSAI, Dr. SU Chien Cheng and Dr. SU Sh

Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the
“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and subsequent
amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-
free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and
privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks
on exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company
(the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI (the “Licensee”) entered into

a license agreement and subsequent amendments at a
consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and

in the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or has been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Dr. SU Chien Cheng,
Dr. SU Sh Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio
Ling as the assignors and the Company as the assignee
entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant to which the
assignors assigned certain trade marks to the assignee for a
consideration of HK$10.
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1. BRERTHREALRS @)
(B) HftnZ 5k

)

(i

(i

(v)

RIBFAEGZE  AQRESBU
SEANREHEE 1T AREE
AR EEZHBLIRAR
EtEmROARLE(TBRE
BENRETA-AAEF—A
—HE=ZSE——F+=Z/A=+—
ANBEERRERERt ZFT
o

R-ZZZ2-F+AHA  BARE
BEBRERNAMBESI LM
BUFIEGE - RIEZSH
& EEREURBARERE
Wit REREEQBERERE
RHETERZFE - FFa#E
& B AR 2 S E AT 0 R
B

R-ZZEENF+—-A+H -=F
EANF-ATZBR=-ZEZIhE
+TA+ERB » 2#iE+ - HiEwiE
TRESEEL(GEIEES D
HEAQNT(ERES )T
EHmERERIEE - U108 T
ZRERLREBFEERE A
B KAMERARAEE 2 3 0
RiEHE  UREHEHEBRE
FBREEFHAETEE -

R-ZZZBNF+-A+HEZ=Z
EAFE-A+T=H F2a(E
BEDEsEL ((ERER DA
S FF A R R HRIERT 0 B0
BTZRERHERR - 455
EERBE R KA LR SIE(BE
DRBTREZER)  DUARRE
EREEBNREE - HEHERR
RrRERSTEERE TEE
WETRERECEMHCHRFFE
Mzl tEEER - BRERA
RYIARARESEEMHRE
1HE o

ZEEAFTA+TRRB  BEE
Bt HEREL  HEHEET
K Natural Beauty Magazine Yang
Chio LingfE % tH i A BEZR 1 B 4E
RABEAGTTIBHEZELHE Bt
BEAURBI0B T OAEA HE
ETEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZZNFT+-_A=+—HLEE

31.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(B) Other Arrangements (Continued)
(v)  On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen Yu as the licensor

and the Company as the licensee entered into a licence
agreement pursuant to which the licensor granted to the
licensee a non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual
and irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world
to use certain licensed trade marks only in respect of the
businesses conducted by the licensee for a consideration of
HK$10.

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

The statement of financial position of the Company is as follows:

Assets EE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRBZRE
Available-for-sale investments HEERE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B B 1 BIFRIE
Other receivables H {th FE U BR TR
Bank balances and cash RITEERES
Liabilities =L
Other payables H b ETERRR
Amounts due to subsidiaries S NG e
Net assets BEFE
Capital and reserves BRAR B
Share capital &N
Reserves (note) ELEAGIEED)

I1.BEREHAEALIRZ @
(B) HEfthZHE

(v)

—EFNE+A+TER BEEE
BLEABEEARERQTELAE
RERRT LA E - Bt
BREFUI0BTZRE  RER
BEREHIER ST EER
AR KAMRTAHEEZ
FARERSE  URERE R
ERRAIKEERERE TR
FERGAZ o

32. AN Al Z B AR R R 3R

RATZBBERRBERAT

2009 2008
—BENE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
169,602 169,602
3,926 5,926
237,685 414,836
3,035 2,960
253,685 177,883
667,933 771,207
7,715 27,523
50,634 27,558
67,349 55,081
600,584 716,126
200,210 200,064
400,374 516,062
600,584 716,126

BAZREYREBRLAE —ZEAFER
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

32.

RPN B Z B AR R R 3R o)

Note: Kz
Share Share option Retained

premium reserve profits Total

BORE RIRRERE REBHEF st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FBT FHT FH&T
At 1 January 2008 R-EENFE—-HF—AH 336,758 101 127,023 463,882
Shares issued upon exercise of AT ERIRRERE
share options BITR A 1,298 (237) - 1,061
Profit for the year FRREF - - 350,906 350,906
Dividends recognised as distribution ’RDIRZ BRI (300,032) - - (300,032)
Recognition of share based payments BRI - 840 - 840
Forfeiture of share options RN RE - (595) - (595)
At 31 December 2008 RN-ZEENGE
+=A=+—H 38,024 109 477,929 516,062
Shares issued upon exercise of T ERR IR R R
share options BITRRAD 2,992 (625) - 2,367
Profit for the year REEREF] - - 18,505 18,505
Recognition of share based payments TRRAD TR - 541 - 541
Cancellation Forfeiture of share options EEERRE - (25) - (25)
Dividends recognised as distribution DR Z IR - - (137,076) (137,076)
At 31 December 2009 RZZBBAEF
+=A=+—H 41,016 — 359,358 400,374
33.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXREEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents

and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs or issue of new debt.
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

34a. Categories of financial instruments

34b.

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BRI AR
(including cash and (BERESRESEEY)
cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Financial liabilities cREHE
Amortised cost BRI

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposit, bank balances
and trade and other payables. Details of these financial instruments

are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these

financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

()

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the short-term bank deposits. The
directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposure to
the interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within a short maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors of the
Company will continuously monitor interest rate fluctuation
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

34. €T A

34a. &R T EER
2009 2008
—sEnE —sEnE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
633,895 622,664
3,926 5,926
62,025 70,251

34b. B EMEE B ERBER

AEEFEERTABERARE - &
ZREMBWIRT - CHEPRITR - R
THREUAREZ R HEMEMIRY - 1t%
EBMTAZFERERMERE - Hit
ZERMITARE AR KEEARERRE
ZHRHENT N - EEEEEREEZ
ZRE - BRREERRECEERERE -

5 EfE

() FIFEE
AREBERBITHENREEMA
RBRITEFEAZREREFNZE
B WOMFRUEHIRITERORE
DFEFNRER - ARRAESR
B AREZANREABIEFE

K RERFERITEEREY
REH -

7N £ [ 3R B 0 4 ) 2% L B R
EARREHBER - ARABES
BEEERNERE - LERE
EERZEEITRZRME

BAXEMRRBRAE —EENFER
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the bank balances at the
reporting date. For bank balances, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of balances at the reporting date was
held the whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 December 2009 would increase/decrease by
HK$2,797,000 (2008: increase/decrease by HK$2,731,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its bank balances.

(i)~ Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

Management considers that Group does not expose to
significant foreign currency risk as majority of its transactions
are either denominated in functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is pegged to HKD,
relevant foreign currency risk is minimal.
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34. €@ T B
34b. B E M EIE B ERBUER (#)

TSR ()

()

(i)

T E iz ()

HBET T

LU SR E D I RIB R T & 17
RBEBMZFARABREE - 5
RITHEEMS - 2MDHERER
AT RAmMmRER -
AERERASABRRAEE
B BS R A 2 SOME B BB IR R R
EEHANREEBEEH 2T
flr o

i K =38 o0 A 50 B E B
Ht#HEETE  AEEEE
—EZAF+ZA=+—HILHF
E Z @RS iR 42,797,000
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk
As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

At 31 December 2009, the five largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 45% (2008: 23%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables attributable to the
Group’s trade receivables were approximately 18% (2008: 9%) of
the Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly PRC other than Hong Kong and Taiwan, which
accounted for 45% (31 December 2008: 39%) and 54% (31
December 2008: 60%) of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2009.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies
on its operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
receivables and financial liabilities falls within 30 to 180 and 30 to
90 days respectively as at 31 December 2008 and 2009.

34. €@ T B
34b. B IS E R B IE B E R IBUR ()

EERE

RZBEAFE+ZA=+—0  ~5H
AT A REEBITHESIMEEHIEE
BrEaEERRIREESSHMERR
HRIWECZRECERSHEERE
B AREFRRKEERR  FAEEEE
BEZE-—HAE SEEEEER
BoREERETHMEERRS &
RIREEHANEE2EBNEE o It
o AEEERESREPBLEE AR
BERESEH 2 ATNESLE  BRET
AUk B FRIEAE R AR E S - it
AATESBRE  AEEZEERARD
RIEHD o

RBEEZFERRAR - FERTLH
FHAREREENFRIRBRTRERE
B2 IRT

RIEZNF+ZA=+—H BEXKE
ZREWBRRESRNEE 5 EWIRT45%
ZEENF 1 23%) 0  MAKEEEZE
WEER PR AEBERRAGAEEE S
FEWBRFARZE18% (ZBEE\F :9%) °

AEBRMBE S 2 EERMEESEF
RABE(EBRABERIN) - RZZZH
F+ZA=1+—8 " 2HHESEWER
R45%(—ZEENF+ZA=+—8:
39% ) R54%(ZEENFF+ZA=F—
H :60%) °

MEE LR
EERBDESRABAE - AEBEZER
HEREEERRARMRERREEE
YIKF - AR EEEERHES MR
BRERBREBFE - AEEMRBEE
ERERBERTERDESRR

R-ZEENER-_ZZFEANF+=A
=t+—8 - FXEEE SR EMERER
UREBMEBEZHTENAHAS A
30F180H R30F90HMA °
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

34c. Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 and 2009
are as follows:

34. €@ T Bum)
34c. A FE

TREERESREBELAFERREER
Mz EERN - UTERZBITTER
SERRIZEREUT A ZRE &

MRBERED

HEERE °

ESRA  NRSUBBMRZBERE
ARz EREERSRABEREESER

DFERE

35. B A AlIF1E

R-BENFR=-ZF

hWE+ZR=+—

B AQARMBARFENT !

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary KRFR
and operations share capital HWEARE  Attributable to
Name of company oA Kind of legal status HMEK/BRT  FECERG the Group
NRER REBEHH EESD REREERES RAEELS REEER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC Foreign investment 1US$29,980,000 100% 100%
Company Limited PEAHE enterprise with 54:9,980,0007t
LEBARERERAT limited liabilty
BREMNELE
Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian The PRC Limited liability RMB8,000,000 100% 100%
Cosmetics Company Limited GENS joint venture enterprise ARH8,000,0007
LERAZZRERERAA BREfAELE
Shanghai Natural Beauty Qingbo The PRC Limited liability RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Cosmetics Company Limited PEAHE joint venture enterprise AR%5,000,0007
LERAZERIERERAR BREfSELE
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fansi The PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 100% 100%
Jewellery Company Limited HEAHE joint venture enterprise ARE500,0007
LEBAXATHEERAT BREfAELE
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Principal activity

IEEH

Production and sale of skin care
and beauty products
EEREEEER
ERER

Wholesale and retail of skin care
and beauty products;
provision of beauty treatments

HERSEERRERER,
RftxAER

Wholesale and retail of skin care

and beauty products
HERBEEERZAER

Sale of jewellery, craftwork,
adornment, leather and
horologe

HEHE  TE8R-
REREK
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B A RIFHE @

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary RRAR
and operations share capital ~ EMEAR  Attributable to
Name of company A Kind of legal status HMER /BB FBERT the Group  Principal activity
NAER REEE EESD RAREBRA RAEELH rREEL ITER
Xi An Natural Beauty Mingyu The PRC Limited liability RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company Limited HEARE joint venture enterprise AR3,000,0007 beautty products and
BERBAERFIRRERERLA HRERAELE related instruments;
provision of skin care and
beauty consulting
BEEERZAERR
TRES | R EER
REREA
Qingdao Natural Beauty Omaments ~ The PRC Limited liability RMB4,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Company Limited PEAHE joint venture enterprise AR™4,000,0007 beauty products and
EEEAEHRARLT AREfRELE adornment
HERERZRERRESR
Nanjing Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited EIARE joint venture enterprise AR%2,000,0007 provision of beauty treatments
HREAEHREREALT ERERGELE HEVHERRRHEAER
Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC Limited liabiity RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Company Limited PEARE joint venture enterprise AR%2,500,0007 beauty products; provision of
AABBAELNRERLA ARERRERE beauty treatments and
skin care and beauty
consulting and training
HERERZRER Bt
ERERMERUR
P
Hainan Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Company Limited EIARE joint venture enterprise AR2,500,0007 beauty products; provision of
BEARERRERLT HRERARELE beauty treatments and beauty
consulting and training
HERERZRER Rt
EREENEABARE
Shenzhen Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC Limited liability RMB4,000,000 90% 90%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited PEAHE joint venture enterprise AR%4,000,0007 provision of beauty treatments
MImEREHRERAT BREfSELE BEVHERRRIIEER
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B A RIFHE @

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary RRAR
and operations share capital ~ EMEAR  Attributable to
Name of company A Kind of legal status HMER /BB FBERT the Group  Principal activity
NEIER RS EEED REREERE RAEELH rREEL ITER
Haerbin Sanlian Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Cosmetics Company Limited HEARE joint venture enterprise AR1,000,0007 provision of beauty treatments
KREZEAAZREERAR BREfSELE BEVHERRRAEEE
Wuhan Natural Beauty Cutural The PRC Limited liability RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Development Company Limited EIARE joint venture enterprise AR#2,500,0007 provision of beauty treatments
HEBAZAERERLT ERERAELE BEVHERRRAZAER
Wenzhou Natural Beauty Cosmetics ~ The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited PEARE joint venture enterprise AR%2,000,0007 provision of beauty treatments
BNTEAZREERLR ARERRELE HEVIERRREEAEE
Beiing Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited HEAHE joint venture enterprise ABR20,000,0007 provision of beauty treatments
TRBAEMRRERLA AREMRELE BEVHERRRAZAER
Kunshan Natural Beauty Sanlian The PRC Limited liability RMB1,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Cosmetics Company Limited EIARE joint venture enterprise AR1,500,0007 provision of beauty treatments
BILERE=BHRERLA BRERRELE BEVHERRRAZAER
Changchun Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC Limited liability RMB1,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited PEAHE joint venture enterprise AR%1,500,0007 products; provision of
REBAXRRERAT ARERRELE beauty treatments and skin
care and beauty consulting
HEERRERER ) Rt
ERERNEAREAEH
Mudanjiang Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC Limited liability RMB800,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited W KR joint venture enterprise AEH#800,0007 provision of beauty treatments
UM BAZERERAA ERERAELE BEVHERRRAZAER
Suzhou Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability RMB1,200,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Company Limited PEARE joint venture enterprise AR1,200,0007 beauty products and
ENEAELHRERLA ARERRELE related instruments
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BE-ZENF+-A=1+—HLEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B A RIFHE @

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary RRAR
and operations share capital ~ EMEAR  Attributable to
Name of company A Kind of legal status HMER /BB FBERT the Group  Principal activity
NAER REEE EESD RAREBRA RAEELH rREEL ITER
Fuzhou Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability RMB1,500,000 90% 90%  Wholesale and retail of skin
Company Limited HEARE joint venture enterprise AR%1,500,0007 care and beauty products
BNBAZRRERLA AREMRELE and related instruments;
provision of skin care and
beauty consulting
HARBERRRZAER
RifEEN  RIEER
REREA
LERAZERMARERLT The PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 100% 100%  Wholesale and retall of skin care
EAHE joint venture enterprise AR500,0007 and beauty products
BREfSELE HERZERERZRER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli The PRC Foreign investment US$1,480,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Cosmetics Company Limited AR enterprise with %4£1,480,0007 and beauty products
(Formerly known as limited liabity EERHEEERZRER
Shanghal Full-Beauty Cosmetics BREMNELE
Company Limited)
LERRZEEIERERAR
(ABLEERERERAR)
IRBAENSHREGRAR The PRC Limited liabity RMB10,000,000 51% 51%  Sale of cosmetic products and
GEDN: joint venture enterprise AEH10,000,0007 provision of beauty treatments
BREfSELE BEVHERRRAEAE
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan Limited liability company NT$201,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited (Formerly B AREALF #a%201,000,0007 and beauty products
known as Natural Beauty tERBEEERERER
Cosmetic Company Limited)
BAZENRERDERAT
(EBBAXERRAERAR)
Tian Ran Mei Bio-Technology Taiwan Limited liability company NT$32,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care
Company Limited ag BREALT #A¥32,000,0007 and beauty products
RAEEMHEROERAR LERHERRRZAER
Huei Yao Investment Company Limited ~ Taiwan Limited liability company NT$122,043,420 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERRERNERLT aE BREMRLF HA%122,043 4207 REER

BAZREVRRKBRLAE —ZENAFER
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BECZTNFT-A=1+—HILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company
NRER
Beauty Essen Cosmetics
Company Limited
RERRHERAE
Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics
Company Limited
GRBSEANECERAERAR

Belem Holdings Scn. Bhd.

Bilion Synergy Sdn. Bhd.

Ice Crystal Management Limited

KRERERAA

Great Glamour Company Limited

Next Success International Limited

Fortune Investment Global Limited

Place of
incorporation
and operations
AL
RS

Taiwan

&%

Taiwan

£

Malaysia
ERFEE

Malaysia
ERAE

British Virgin
Islands (‘BVI")

ABERRHE
(EBERER
#8)

BV
AEERRHE

BV
ABERRES

BV
ABEEREE

Kind of legal status
EEED

Limited liability company

BRERAR

Limited liability company
BREALH

Limited liability company
BREALH

Limited liability company
BREALH

Limited liability company
BREALH

Limited liability company
BREALT

Limited liability company
BREELE

Limited liability company
BREALH

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009

Proportion of

nominal value

of issued capital

held by

the Company

and its

Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries

and fully paid ordinary RRAR

share capital ~ EMEAE

HMER /BB FBERT

REREBRE RAEELH

NT$1,000,000 100%
1,000,007

NT$50,000,000 9%
#74%50,000,0007

MYR68,609,858 100%
Class B shares
BREREZE
68,609,8587C
MYR10,000
Class A shares
AREREZH
10,0007

MYR2 100%
EREZBT

US$52,000 100%
%£52,0007

US$50,000 100%
4500007

US$100 100%
E£1007

US$50,000 100%
%£50,0007

Attributable to

the Group
RREEL

100%

94%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

35. Mt 2~ RIEEE ()

Principal activity

IREH

Provision of beauty consulting

and training
REERFAREN

Provision of beauty consulting

and training
RtEAEARE

Investment holding
REER
Wholesale of skin care and
beauty products
HEEERERER
Investment holding
REZR
Investment holding
Ralk
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REZR
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BE-ZEENF+-A=1+—HLEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B A RIFHE @

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary RRAR
and operations share capital ~ EMEAR  Attributable to
Name of company A Kind of legal status HMER/BRT  FBERT the Group  Principal activity
NEER RS EESD REREERE RAEELH rREEL ITER
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Hong Kong Limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
(Hong Kong) Company Limited i AREALH A10,0007 provision of beauty treatments
BAEENRE (BR)ERLR HEVHERRRAEEE
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Macau Limited liability company MOP25,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
(Macao) Compny Limited il BRERLF TBF3#25,0007 provision of beauty treatments
BAREENRE (RM)ERAR BEVHERRRAZAER
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability company HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BAZHEERERAT i BREALH BT REER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med The PRC Limited liability company US$2,600,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited PEARE joint venture enterprise %42,600,0007 health supplement
LEBREANEEERLT BRERRELE HERHERERR
LEBAZEARNERAR The PRC Limited liabifty company RMBA6,000,000 100% 100%  Beauty consulting; wholesale
AR joint venture enterprise AE#6,000,0007 and retail of skin care and
BREAELE heauty products
EREH  HERTEER
-
Spring Perfect Biomedical Taiwan Limited liability company NT$16,500,000 100% 94%  Provision of professional
Company Limited = joint venture enterprises #12%16,500,0007 medical care products
EREREERNERAT BREfSELE HESXEEEEER
Ningbo Hai Shu Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB3,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Cosmetics Company Limited PEAE joint venture enterprise AR3,500,0007 (Note provision of beauty treatments
EREREAXERERAT ARERRELE (FiE) HEVIERRREEAEE

BAZREYREBRLATE —2EAFER
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35.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B A RIFHE @

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
Place of Registered capital/issued  subsidiaries
incorporation and fully paid ordinary KRRR
and operations share capital ~ EMEAT  Attributable to
Name of company ERAL Kind of legal status HMER/BRT  FECER the Group  Principal activity
GE2 RESEHY EEgA REREBRE RAEELA REEEE ITER
Tianjin Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 90% 90%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited e joint venture enterprise AR#2,000,0007 (Note|) provision of beauty treatments
FEBAEARERAR BREfAELE (i) HEVHERRREERE
Forever Young Recreation Resort Taiwan Limited liability company NT$10,000,000 100% 100%  Beauty consulting; wholesale
Company Limited ae BREALH #12%10,000,0007 (Note ) and retal of skin care and
EEIEERALRAERAR (Hai) beauty products
EREN HERTEEE
£RER
Spring Rejuvenation Biomedical Taiwan Limited liability company NT$15,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of hair care products
Company Ltd =) BREALT #1415 0000007 (Noteii HEREES
EEEREBRABRAT (R
Notes: et
()  The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2009. () ZHEBARARBZE-ZZEAF+-A=1+—
B FERUEZM ©
(i)  The subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2009. iy FHBARARBEZE-ZZEAF+=-A=1+—
BEEEMMRL
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at RELRFREMEE > BIEMBLAREE
the end of the year or at any time during the year. IR EBREHES o
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Financial Summary

TSR ER

RESULTS

REVENUE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
MINORITY INTERESTS

WA

BRBLADEFI

Fr8Bim sz

AREERF

PEfh

RARERA
DB RS

ES

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=1+—-BLFE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—EERFE C—BTAF —TBLF —BBN\F | —BBhEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
357,916 363,746 450,147 592,701 538,092
119,845 174,453 208,029 308,477 186,753
(38,834) (51,641) (29,248) (69,898) (42,830)
81,011 122,812 178,781 238,579 143,923
81,092 123,198 178,707 238,477 149,636
(81) (386) 74 102 (5,713)

81,011 122,812 178,781 238,579 143,923

BAZREYREBRLAE —ZEAFER
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Financial Summary

TSR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS BEE
TOTAL LIABILITIES wmasE

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO KAEHEEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY PElhrERE

MINORITY INTERESTS DR R RS

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2009

EERAE

At 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—-8
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—ETREF —EEXREF —ZZtHF —EENE —EZhE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$°000
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
937,470 997,660 1,032,314 1,026,226 999,319
(117,173) (118,489) (116,663) (169,819) (130,491)
820,297 879,171 915,651 856,407 868,828
813,511 878,739 909,626 849,960 868,082
6,786 432 6,025 6,447 746
820,297 879,171 915,651 856,407 868,828
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